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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Parijat Industries (India)
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™), its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income. the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group. as at March 31, 2023, their consolidated profit including
the other comprehensive income and their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics® issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
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other information and. in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent

with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income . consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective companies and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of nat detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
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that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

«  Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors. to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding.
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 8 subsidiaries
and one employee welfare trust, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 24.892.51 lakhs
as at March 31. 2023, and total revenues of Rs 28.984.32 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs 1.875.21
lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have
been audited by other auditors, whose financial statements. other financial information and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries. is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with group accounting policies and which have been
g d auditing standards applicable in their respective
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countries. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located
outside India is based on the report of other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the *Other Matter”
paragraph we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of
the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other fi nancial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the *other matter” paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the C onsolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income . the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31. 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group’s com panies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31. 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 10
this report:

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the year ended March 31, 2023:

(h) With respect to the other matters 1o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
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our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the *Other matter” paragraph:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group. in its consolidated financial statements —
Refer Note 25(A) to the consolidated financial statements;

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31. 2023.

a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries, to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds have been received by the respective
Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing
or otherwise. that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall. whether, directly
or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act. nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year in respect of the same
declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to payment of dividend.

As stated in note 12(D) to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members of the Holding Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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The dividend declared is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies
to declaration of dividend.

vi.  As provisoto Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 is applicable only w.e.f.
April 1. 2023 for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies incorporated in
India. hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

o
W
o

per Vikas Mehra

Partner

Membership Number: 094421
UDIN: 23094421 BGYFWCT7387
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: September 04, 2023
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Annexure ‘1° referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited (‘the Company’)
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and based on the consideration of reports of
other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries incorporated in India and to the best of the knowledge and

belief, we state that:

(XX1) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Name CIN Holding Clause number
company/ of the CARO
subsidiary report which is
company qualified or is
adverse
Parijat Industries U242 19DL1995PTC 161 189 Holding i(b), ii(e),

(India) Private Company vii(a)

Limited

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registration er: 301003E/E300005
per Vikas Mehra

Partner

Membership Number: 094421
UDIN: 23094421 BGYFWC7387
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; September 04, 2023
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CPANNEXURIEZ°TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARIJAT INDUSTRIES (INDIA)
PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited (“the Company™) (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiary companies. which are companies incorporated in India. as of that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are
companies incorporated in India. are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing. as specified under sectiqn 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these consolidated financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these consolidated
linancial statements,
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these consolidated Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has. in all material respects. adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company, insofar as it relates to two subsidiary companies which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary
incorporated in India. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firlp Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

L

per Vil&a}M%

Partner

Membership Number: 094421
UDIN: 23094421 BGYFWCT7387
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: September 04, 2023




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

" As at As at
TAIcE ek March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3(A) 8,112.06 7,760.42
Capital work in progress 3(A) 447.17 205.69
Goodwill 4 330.49 330.49
Other Intangible assets 4 2,489.04 1,673.92
Right of use assets 26(9) 324.20 456.13
Intangible assets under development 4 1,227.83 1,615.27
Financial assets
(i) Loans 5(A) 108.32 87.97
(ii) Other financial assets 5(B) 471.84 134.65
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1,895.61 1,312.20
Other non-current assets 7 139.38 163.65
Non- current tax assets (net) 88.65 -
15,634.59 13,740.39
Current assets
Inventories 8 34,110.88 26,531.06
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9(A) 27,581.69 18,977.47
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents B) 1,831.33 4,205.95
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 9C) 1,023.51 1,647.40
(iv) Loans 9(D) 89.99 82.38
(v) Other financial assets 9AE) §1.47 165.82
Other current assets 10 6,417.36 4,695.46
71,136.23 56,305.54
Assets held for sale 3(B) 350.86 -
Total Assets 87,121.68 70,045.93
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11(A) 2,963.96 2,045.48
Other equity 11(B) 20,495.88 2,801.26
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 23,459.84 4,846.74
Non-controlling interests 11(B) 479.80 335.34
Total equity 23,939.64 5,182.08
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 12(A) 232746 19,474.23
(ii) Lease liabilities 12(B) 31.09 129.52
Provisions 13 355.23 296.92
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 49.44 28.58
2,763.22 19,929.25
Current liabilities
Contract liabilities 12(C) 2,606.36 3,543.85
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 12(A) 20,837.65 14,105.48
(ii) Lease liabilities 12(B) 98.43 128.38
(iii) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12(D) 156.27 199.57
b) Total outstanding due other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12(D) 32,239.63 23,262.03
(iv) Other financial liabilities 12(E) 2,827.13 2,316.96
Provisions 13 342.53 239.90
Other current liabilities 14 371.95 471.75
Current tax liabilities (Net) 15 938.87 666.68
60,418.82 44,934.60
Total equity and liabilities 87,121.68 70,045.93

The accompanying notes are forming an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Charterg¢dhAccountants

Firm Régisiation No. 301003E/E300005

per Vikas"Méhra
Membership No.:

4219DL1995PTC

naging Director & CEO
: 01050275

W

Apoorva Choubey
Chief Financial Officer

4421

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 04, 2023

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 04, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Parijag Industries ﬂndia)llj
H 6

ivate Limjed
189

Sharat Anand
Director Finance
DIN: 00083237

o

Anil Kumar Sachdeva
Company Secretary
1ICSI M.No: F11493



Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul ¥
s imeiogn Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
[ INCOME
Revenue from operations 16 102,850.27 78,439.94
Other income 17 928.70 483.83
Total Income 103,778.97 78,923.77
II EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 18 43,980.42 46,769.78
Purchase of traded goods 19 30,615.27 15,107.99
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods, work in progress
and traded goods 20 (386.18) (6,863.68)
Employee benefits expense 21 8,499.67 7,659.82
Depreciation and amortization expenses 22 1,708.14 1,346.23
Finance Costs 23 2,573.45 1,758.79
Other expenses 24 14,173.94 10,191.25
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial instruments at fair through profit or loss 12 (2,340.00) 6,470.00
Total Expenses 98,824.71 82,440.18
Il Profit/(Loss) before tax (I-1I) 4,954.26 (3,516.41)
[V Tax expenses 6
Current tax 1,263.60 1,135.42
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (549.56) (151.86)
Total tax expense 714.04 983.56
vV Profit/(Loss) for the year (ITI-IV) 4,240.22 (4,499.97)
VI Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
(i) Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans 26(1) (51.86) 6.34
(11) Income tax effect on above 6(b) 12.99 (L.61)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
(iii) Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations (13.25) 0.25
(iv) Income tax effect on above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (i+ii-+iii+iv) (52.12) 4.98
VI Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (V+VI) 4,188.10 (4,494.99)
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent 4,179.29 (4,227.69)
- Non-controlling interests 60.93 (272.28)
Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent (53.20) 4,65
- Non-controlling interests 1.08 0.33
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Equity holders of the parent 4,126.09 (4,223.04)
- Non-controlling interests 62.01 (271.95)
VI Earnings per equity share { nominal value of share Rs.10 (previous year Rs.10)}  26(8)
Basic EPS (Rs.) 20.33 (20.67)
Diluted EPS (Rs.) 20.07 (20.37)

The accompanying notes are forming an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Helkjstration No. 301003E/E300005

per Vikas
Membership No.; 094421

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 04, 2023

Apoorva Choubey
Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi

Date : September 04,2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Parijgt Industries (India) Private Limited
CIN: §24219DL1995PTC161189

Sharat Anand
Director Finance
DIN: 00083237

e —al

Anil Kumar Sachdeva
Company Secretary
1CSI M. No: F11493



Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended

March 31, 2022

Particulars

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/( Loss) before tax

4.954,26 (3.516.41)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,708.14 1.346.23
Loss on sale of plant, property and cquipment (net) 7.12 17.13
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) (net) 673.90 627.97
Finance Cost 2,573.45 1,758,79
Liabilities no longer required written back (20.73) (98.53)
Interest income (249.63) (134.90)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss. (2.340.00) 6,470.00
Impairment allowance for advances considered doubtful - 0.71
Impairment allowance for trade receivables - credit impaired 793.05 274.68
Development expenses written of f 9.77 -
Bad Debt 154,90 105,11
Employee stock option expense (3.70) 39.29
Loss/(Gain) on change in fair value of derivatives 270.62 (82.56)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 8,531.15 6,807.51
Movement in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (7.579.82) (6,315.47)
Decrease/{ Increase} in trade receivables (10.221.94) (2,617.85)
Decrease/( Increase) in financial assets and loans (7.89) (39.77)
Decrease/( Increase) in other assets (1,739.38) (480.81)
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities (937.49) 1,365.05
Increase/( Decrease) in trade payables 8.948.61 6.100.33
Increase/(Decrease) in financial liabilities 324,80 277.26
Increase/( Decrease) in other liabilities (99.84) 315.97
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 109.08 119.56
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (2.672.72) 5,511.78
Income tax paid (net of refunds) . (1,152.66) (1,200.52)
Net Cash flow from (used in) Operating Activities (A) (3,825.38) 4,311.26

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital

] ‘ . (3.000.95) (2.368.40)
work in progress Intangibles and Intangible assets under
Proceeds [rom sale of property, plant and equipment 77.94 75.33
Change in investment in deposits with bank (net) 265.74 (440.30)
Interest income received 249.63 134.90
Net Cash flow (used in) Investing Activities (B) (2,407.64) (2,598.47)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Additional capital infusion by non-controlling interest 72.62 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 482.20 1.902.45
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,444.10) 5.25
(Repayment)/ Proceeds [rom short-term borrowings (net) 7.686.15 2,046.20
Interest paid (2.488.57) (1,725.94)
Dividend paid (296.40) (145.42)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities (128.3%) (181.13)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilitics (22.03) (32.85)
Employee stock option Paid (3.006) -
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 3,858.37 1.868.56
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,374.65) 3,581.35
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 4.205.95 624,57
Net foreign exchange difference 0.03 0.03
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 1.831.33 4,205.95




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes :
| The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows",
2 Refer note 12(A) for change in liabilities from financing activities
3 Components of cash and cash equivalents :-

As at As at
Balances with banks March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current accounts 1,530.20 2,685.29
Cash credit account 255.96 93.14
Cash on hand 45,17 105.30
Deposit Accounts - 1,322.22
1,831.33 4,205.95

The accompanving notes are forming an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24219DL1995PTC161189

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

M v
/ Shav Anand Sharat Anand
per Vikas Mehra Managing Director & Director Finance

Membership No.: 094421

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 04, 2023

01050273

M

Apoorva Choubey
Chief Financial Offict

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 04, 2023

DIN: 00083237

/

Anil Kumar Sachdeva
Company Secretary
ICSI M.No: A40331



€611 ON'W ISDI
ATEIAI09S AURAWIO))
BAIPYIRG AvWNY [IUY

|.\.\\

LETER000 -NI
aoueuly 1013an(g

PUBLY JEIEYS

€202 'F0 12qmaN0ag : AEQ
RQ MaN  30Eld

o

SLTOSO10 -NI
0D % 10wan( 3ua!

681191D1dS661TAGITHTN *NI

J20IP O [eroUEUL JATYD
AqNOY)) BAIOAY

panwry 21eAL (EIPU) SALNSHPU] JEILIE]
JO 51039271 JO PIEOE A JO J[FYAG UO PUE S04

£207 'P0 20qmAadg : ANEQ
1qaq M : 39¢d

1Zhp60 0N digs1aqUuziN
(AN STHIA 130

0.2@% @

CO00DSA/AE00I0E ON UONEUSETY UtiLd
SIUBIUNOIYY PRIAUEYD

471700 ¥ loqupeg WS 104

2)Ep U2AR JO HOAAI NO J3d 5V

“SUAWR)ES [RIOUBTTY PAIEPIOSUOA S joed [Rifa ue SULO) A€ S0U FmAuedwodde WL

e USGLY SESEV 0L 665EL LTF0T9 SELIOL 951909 B0S0L ERI Kby WO (8
e ) (07°967) ; = - 07960 - - TG 570 A1) 169K 31 Furmp pred puapiald
AE.,.E - (9L9) - - - 3 (9L°9) - suauiked paseq a1EyS
TSTI8R'EL = TS 188°El - LIH0T'9 SELLYL - - - (V)1 2100 1301) TALAS T8 Pan[eA Ayjie] [EOUEL JO UOUTO01AP JO MMCIIE UO HORIPPY!
o e y : ] = 2 . - sai51n Sunjeau0-uou g uoisnjuL [ENded [EUOIPPY
000 €86 (£3°6) - - - (£3°6) - - 15213101 FUJ[OAIUO-IOU JO BONISTDIE JO WNOIE 1O WHHSNIPY
60°881'P 10779 609Z1'F (SZ°€1) - - PE6ET'Y - - 1894 2y 10§ amW0au IaisUAGAd WO [EI0L
clwuma 8071 (S6'6£) = = = 660 . — ST PAEP U0 (Ol TS SHSRSeuY
(szen) = (szgl) (szen) - - - suonE1ado UFa10] 10 SJUALAIEIS [FIAUELL JO UONE[SUEI) U0 2P SHEUX
: ag2ak a1 o) AWoIUL uluauaﬂ._ﬂcu 1290
TTorey £6'09 6T6LIY - - - 6T6LLY s - 182 o 10] {5500
09°9€1 £ PESEE 9T108°T FTGFT = = STSITT VRIIC E6 111 TEOT € DIEW IS Y
oL (@rsr) [0 TG 1 9100 13j31] 18aA o4 BULNp e PuapiAlcl
6768 - 62°6E = 5 6765 . asuadxa uondo ¥oos aako[dw
(66°F6F'F) ($61L7) (F0€TTP) S7'0 = . (6T°€TTH) . . Agak ) 1oj amosuE 3a1suIFAIdWOD [EIOL
m...”v m (g4 - - = o % = Sue|d Jjauaq pautjap uo {SS0])/UIES SJUAUIAINSEAAY
= ) 0 £T0 - - = suonesado uSia10} Jo siuaURIEIS [ELAUBLY ) Fupipjsurt UO S20UIAYIP agueyoxy
‘ : w3k 1)) 10J AWOINL aarsuagaadmod 120
(L666t'+) (8TTLD) (69°LTT'D) ; = _ . i i ook a0 10} (ss0 )OI
TLLELL 6TL09 SPOET'L 66872 - - 969659 SSTLl G111 1207 10 AV 18 5V
A1353Y HONENIINY] aatas23 JuamAed
sjsaIu1 WNWLg SIPLINDI QAIISD e sSuuey paureld A1 (RSN
Lnba Brog Tuigpossseo woiy 1o, udtasoq d s H FECeD AP d paseq aieys I D
RARLIAR0 snjdans pue saslasay SIB[NANAE]
uaied 3 siapjoy Ayinb
[ 1j} Jo saapjoy Aynba ag) 0 3qEINgUnY -
96°£96'C L8S 6EY6L TZ0Z TE WPIEIN 18 5V
8V 816 LYLV8L6 TIVIL1 3100 Jajai] saies -
uv_m.é T Em_vnq 0T B
: - Tp AV IE 5V,
SFSHT OF8 PSP 0T 1707 10 14
Junouy SON SIE[NIAIE]

jende)) 24y mby (V
(PIITS ISIMIAHO SSAUN SPHET U1 "sy Ul Sunome ny)

€Z0Z "€ YPIBIA PIPUS 1834 91} 10§ SSOT] PUE JJOI ] JO JUITINEIS pajepijosue)
panmy| 9yTALLJ (BIpU]) SaLsnpu] 1eILEd



Pariiat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes (o consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

2.0

.03

a)

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Parijat Industries (India) Privaie Limited (“the Holding company" or "the Parent company") and its subsidiarics
(collectively referred to as "Group®) for the year ended March 31, 2023, The Parent company is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act (“"the Act") applicable in India,

The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing, trading. import and export of various agrochemicals (primarily pesticides) and other related products, which are used
to enhance the productivity of agriculture produce. The Group has its manufacturing facilities located in India and sells both in India and across the globe, The registered office of the
parent company is lTocated at M-77. Ist & 2nd floor, M-Block market, Greater Kailash, New Delhi-110048 and corporate office is located at Plot No. 239, 3¢d Floor, Okhla Industrial
Estate Phase 3 Rd. Okhla, New Delhi, 110020

Information about the Group's structure is provided in Note 26(10). Information about other related party relationships and transactions of the Group are provided in note 26(3) to these
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on September 04, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a hst of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) consolidated financial statements. These policies
have been consistently applicd to all the years.

Buasis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notilied under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division [1 ol Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), as
applicable to the consolidated financial statements.

The company has prepared the consolidated financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as going concern. These policies have been consistently applicd to all the
ted, The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities

years presented, unless otherwise

The consolidated linancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the lollowing assets and liabilities which have been measures at fair value:
(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments),

(i1) Assets held tor sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell

{iii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value

(iv} Share based payments.

{v) Derivative financial instruments.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded 1o the nearest Takhs (Rs. 00,000}, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

B
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent company and its subsidiaries (colleetively referred to as "Group”) as at March 31, 2023, Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, 1o variable returms from its mvolvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically. the Group controls an investee il and only il the Group has:

- Power over the investee (1.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direet the relevant activitics of the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

= The ability 10 use its power over the investee to affect its returns

of consolidation

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an mvestee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power aver an investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote helders of the investee

- Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

= The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

- The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee il facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses ol a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consalidated nancial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other cvents i similar circumstances. 11 o member of the Group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements o ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policics.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up o same reporting date as that of the parent company. i.e., vear ended on March 31, 2023, When
the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary. the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes. additional financial information as of the same date
as the financial stalements of the parent 1o enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable 1o do so or there are no signiticant
transaction or event between the date of those financial statements and date of financial statements of parent company.

Consolidation procedure:

Subsidiarics:
(1) Combine lik
are based on the amounts ol the ts and habilities recognised in the consolidated lnancial statements at the acquisition date

(1) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how
to account for any related goodwill.

(i) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities. cquity, imcome, expenses and cash flows relating o transactions between emtitics ol the group (profits or losses resulting [rom
imragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed as: ed in Tull). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in
the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applics 1o temporary differences that arise from the climination of profits and losses resulting from muragroup

items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash lows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries, For this purpose. income and expenses of the subsidiary

transactions,
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When neecssary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiarics to bring their accounting policies o
line with the Group’s accounting policics. All intra-group assets and liabilitics, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
chminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and linbilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost.

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests,

- Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded m equity.

- Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

- Recognises the fair value of any investment retained.

- Recognises any surplus or defici in profit or loss,

- Recognise that disiribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group's capacity us owners,

- Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferved directly to retained earnings. if required by other Ind ASs as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or labilitics,
The Group treats transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transaction with the equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results
in adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative interest in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised within equity.

Investment in associates and joint ventures:

Anassociale is an Group over which the Group has signiticant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type ol jont arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture, Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The
considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity methad. Under the equily method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost, The carrying amount of the mvestment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net asscls of the associate or joint venture since the acquisttion date.
Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually,

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OC1 of those investees is presented as part of the
Group's OCL In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
i the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
interest in the associate or joint venture,

IFan Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interest that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net invesiment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses, Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only afier its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss outside operating profil.

T'he financial statements of the
in line with those of the Group.

sociate or joint venture are prepared [or the same reporting period as the Group, When necessary, adjustiments are made to bring the accounting policies

Aller application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence. the Group caleulates the amount
ol impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as *Share of profit of an associate and
a joint venture” in the statement of profit and loss,

Upon lass of significant influence over the associate or jomt control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained mvestment at its fair value, Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associale or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss,

The Group discontinue the use of equity method from the date the investment is classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations and measures the interest in associate and joint venture held for sale at the lower ol its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell,

Business combination and goodwill
Business combinations other than these common control transactions are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate ol the
consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For cach business combination, the Group clects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree al fair value or at the proportionate shave of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expenscd as
incurred.

Consideration transferred mneludes the fair values of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred by the Group 1o the previous owners of the acquirce, and cquity interests issued by the
Group . Consideration transterved also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration. Consideration transferred does not inelude amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships,

IFan obligation o pay contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then 1t is not resmeasured and the settlement is accounted for
within other equity, Otherwise, other contingent cor i

ooty

ideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the 13

wl Lonn. A we

value of the contingent considel

nre wled G the Standa o State ilil} ol the weyg wo e assomod G
obligation and arises from a past event, and its tair value can be measured refiably. On an acquisition by-acquisition b
acquiree either at tair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a

buginess comhination. such as Stamn Duty for title tansfer in the name of the Groun. finder's fees. lewnl fees due dilivence fees and ather professional and consulting fees. are exnensed
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The Group determines that it has acquired o business when the acquired set of activitics and assets include an inpul und a substantive process that together sigiificantly contribute 1o the
ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive if'it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised work force
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience 1o perform that process or it significantly contributes (o the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered UNIQUE O SCaIce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability t continue producing outputs,

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable asscts acquired, and the liabilities assumed arc recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purposc. the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilitics representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resotrces embodying cconomic benefits
is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilitics acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

(a) Deferred tax assets or liabilitics, and the liabilities or assets related to emplayee benefit arrangements arc recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind
AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

(b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry lforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with
Ind AS 12,

(¢) Liabilities or equity instruments related to share bascd payment arrangements of the acquiree or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payments at the acquisition dale,

(d) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractunl term of the related contract. Such valuation docs not consider potential renewal of the
reacquired right.

(€) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classificd as held for sale i accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
aceordance with that Standard, L]

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities ussumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the comtractual terms,
cconomic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

If'the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a
financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS
109, 11 the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS and shall be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is ¢lassified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable s acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net asscts acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correetly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCT and
accumulated in equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain direetly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the
simes throneh OCT

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated 1o ¢ach of the Group's cash-generiting units that are expecied to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned Lo (hose units,

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. 11 the
recoverable amount of the cash gencrating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the earrying amount ol any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of cach asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recagnised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal, Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

[ the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination eccurs, the Group reports provisional amounts [or the itcims
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement periad. or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, 1o
refleet new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, i known, would have affected the amounts recognized w that date. These
adjustments are ealled ns measurement period adjustments, The mensurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

Current versus non-current classification

ets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/mon- current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is;

The Group presents i
- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating eyele

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle u liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= Itis expected (o be setded in normal operating cycle

= IUis held primarily for purpose of trading

- Itis due to be seutled within twelve months alter the reporting period, or

= There 15 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other labilitie ssified as non current,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and Habilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has identified twelve months as its operating
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2,06

Frechold Land 1s carried at historical cost. Al other items of Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less aceumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any Capital work
In progress 15 stated at cost, net of accumulated imparment loss. ifany The historical cost comprises of purchase price. taxes, duties, freight and other meidental expenses directly r;nnhumhle and
related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax eredit availed wherever applicable Any rade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price

Such cost includes the cost ol replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recogmition criteria are met When sigmficant parts of plant and
cquipment are required 1o be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives | tkewise, when a major inspection 15 performed. its cost is recognised m
the canying amount of the plant and equipment us a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenanee costs are recognised i profit o loss as incurred. The present
value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the tem to working condiion for
its ntended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which 1t is located

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately. 1 the component/ part has a cost which is significant (o the total cost of the asset and has useful Tife that 1s
matenally different from that of the remaining asset

Items of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life Otherwise, such items are classified as inventories

Subsequent costs are included in asset's carrying amount or recognmised as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economie benefit associnted with the jtem will Mlow o the
Group and the cost of item can be measured reliably

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recogmsed 15 derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benelits are expected from ils use or disposal. Any
gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying nmount of the asset) 1s meluded m the ncome statement whien the
assel 1s derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of deprecintion of property. plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted prospectively. il appropriate

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 1s culeulated on prorata basis on st raight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The useful hife is os follows

Assets Useful life (in years) Usefull life as per Sehedule 1 (in years)

Buildimgs 30 30
Roads RCC 10| 10
Plant and machnery 1-3510& 15 15
Plant and machinery - vessels & storage tank 20 15
Plantand machinery - Continuous Process Plant (CPP) 8 25
Computers including networking equipments 3 3
Vehicles 4-10) 8
Furnnure and fixtures . 5-10 10
Office equipment 5 5

The useful hives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert: The management, based on its techmical assessment, has estimated the useful lives of certain
plant and machinery as 1-3. 5, 10 & 15 years, which are lower than these indicated in Schedule Il based on nature of underlying asset and 11s use. The residual values are not more than 3% of the
onginal cost of the assets. The asset's restdual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted 1 appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets ure measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recogmzed in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized

Lease hold improvements are deprecrated on strarght Ine basis over shorter of the asset's uselul life and their initial agreement period unless the entity expects 10 use the asset bevond the lease term

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mitial recownition at cost Cost of mtangible assets acquired i business combination is their fair value at the date of acqusiion. Following
mital recognimon, intangible assets are carried at cost less aceumulated amortization and aceumulated mipairment losses, it any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitahized developmem
cost. are not capitalized and the related expenditure 15 reflected m statement of profit and loss n the period in which the espenditure 15 mewrred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset o its working condition for its intended use Internally gencrated mtangibles, excluding capnalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related
expenditure is refleeted i profit or loss i the perad in which the expenditure is incurred

nd assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an indication

The userul lives of intangible assets are assessed as linite Intangible assets with fimte hves are amortized over then useful economic lives
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization methad for an mtangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes m the expected useful hie or the expected pattern of consumption of future ecanomic benefits embodied 1 the assel 18 accounted for by changing the amortization period ar method. as
appropriate. and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets wath finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense ca
consistent with the function of the intangible assets

The amartization period and the amaortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end I the expected usetul life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates. the
amortization peniod is changed accordingly. 17 there hus been a sigmificant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed 1o reflect the
changed pattern

s where siudies have already approved by authorities in a country ore capitalized smee
el

Pavments to third parties that generally tuke the form of up-front payments in the forn of data COmpensation co
the probability of expected future economic benelits eriteria is always considered 1o be satisfied for separately

cquired Intangible A

posal. Any gamn or loss arsing
when the asset 1s

A mtangible ssset is derecognised upon disposal (e at the date the reeipent obtains control) or when no future economie henefits are expected from its use or dis
upon derecognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrymg amount of the asset) 15 included in the statement of profit and loss

derecognised

Intangible assets with finite uselul e are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lite as under

Assets Useful life (in years)
Computer Soltware 5
Product Registration 5
Technical know How 5

p

Trademarks

Research and development cost ) )
Rescarch costs are expensed as meurred Develapment expenditure ncurred on an individual project is recognized as an mtangible asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following

1) The techmieal feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that 1 will be aviulable for use or sale;

i) Its intention to complete the asset:

i) 1s ability 10 use or sale the asset,

) How the asset wall generate future economie benefits,

v) The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and 10 use or sale the asset. and
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vi) The ability to measure rehiably the expenditure atributable to the intangsble asset during development

Following the mitial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset. the cost model is applied requirng the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and acey wlated
mpairment losses. Amortization of the asset begms when development is complete and the asset is available for use. 1t 1s amoriized on straight line basis over the estimated useful life During the
period of development. the asset 1s tested for impairment annually

2.07 Impairment of non- financial nssets

The Group assesses. al each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exasts, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the Group
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount 15 determined for an mdividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the cmrving
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered mpaired and is written down 10 115 recoverable amount.

In assessing value 1n use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
nisks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken ino account. 1 no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model 15
used. These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value mdicators

The Group bases ts impmirment ealeulation on detailed budgets and foreeast caleulations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are nllocated
These budgets and forecast caleulations generally cover a penod of five years. For longer periads, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and applied to projeet future cash flows after the fifth vear To
estimate cash flow projections bevond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, ihe Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case. this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, mdustries, or COUNtry Or countries in
which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, ncluding mpairment on inventories, are recogmsed n the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation
surplus taken 10 OCH For such properties, the impairment is recagnised in OC! up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, un assessment 1s'made at each reporting date to detenmine whether there is an imdication that previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. I such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount A previously recogmised impairment loss 1s reversed only 1f there has been a
change m the assumptions used to deternmine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recogmsed. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed s recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recoumised for the asset in prior vears Such
reversal 1s recogmsed in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, m which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired lmpairment is determined for woodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of
each CGL! (or group of CGLIS) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGL is less than its carrying amount. an impairment loss 1s recogmsed. Impairment losses relatng 1o
voodwill cannot be reversed in future penods

2,08 Financial instruments

A finaneral mstrument 15 any contract that gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a financsal hability or equity instrument of anather entity

(i) Financinl Assets

The Group classifies its financial assets m the following measurement categories
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive meome. or through profit or loss)
~ Those measured at amortized cost

ial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at imitial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash Now charactenistics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade recewvables that do not contam a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group mitially measures a financial assel al its fair value
plus, i the case of a linancial asset not at far value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to acquisition of the financial assets Trade receivables that do not contain a sicnificant
financing component or for which the Group has apphed the pracucal expedient and are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115 Refer to the aceounting policies in section
‘Revenue Irom vontracts with customers'

In order for a financial asset (o be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCL 1t needs to give rise to cash Nows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment 1s referred to as the SPPE test and 15 performed at an instrumient level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are elassified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, urespective ol the busmess model

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers o how 1t manages s financial assets in order to generate cash Mows The business model determimes whether eash flaws will result
from collecting contractual cash flows. selling the financial assets. or both. Financial assets classified and measured ot amortised cost are held within o business model with the objective to hold
financial assets i order 1o collect contractual cash Aows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model wath the objective of both holding 1o
collect contractunl cash Nows and selling

Subsequent measurement

ol subsequent measurement financial assets are classified m following categories

it amornised cost (debt instruments)

= Financial assets at faw value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT) with reeveling of eumulative wams and losses (debt instruments)
= Financial assets designated at fa value through OCT with no reeyelmy of ecumulative gins and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

= Fmmnenl o

= Financul assets at fmr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A hinancial asset” 1s measured al the amortised cost il both the following conditions are met
i) Business Model Test The objective 1s to hold the financial asset to colleet the contractual cash ows (rather than to sell the mstrument prior to its contraciual maturity to realize its fae value
changes) and.,
by Cash Aow characteristics test. The contractual terms ol the Ninaneial asset wive rise on speaific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal nmount
outstanding
This category s most relevant to the Group. After imutial measurement. such Ninancial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective mterest rate (EIR) method Amornised cost
is ealculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash recepts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, When calealating the effective mterest rate. the Group
estimates the expeeted cash Nlows by considermg all the contractual terms of the financial mstrument but does not ¢o hected eredit losses. The EIR amortization s included m other
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Financial assets at fair value through OCH(FVTOCT) (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” 15 classified as at the FVTOC i hoth of the lollowing eriteria are met

a) Business Model Test  The objective of finaneial instrument is achieved by both eolleeting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

by Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt mstrument give rise on speeific dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount
outstanding

Debt instrument ineluded within the FVTOCT eategory are measured initially as well as at ench reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other compreliensive income
(OCI). except for the recognition of interest income, imparment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognized i statement of profit and loss and computed i the same
manner as for financral assets measured at amornised cost. The remaming fair value changes are recogmsed in OC| Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value changes recognised n OCI is
reclassified from the equity to profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carred in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised n the statement of profit and loss. This category mcludes
derivative mstruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not srrevocably elected 1o classify at fair value through OCL Dividends on listed equity mvestments are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Finuncial assets designated at fair value through OCH (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevacably its equity mvestments as equity mstruments designated at fair value through OCT when they meet the defimtion of equity under Ind
AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for rading. The classification 1s determined on an instrument-by-strument basis Equity mstruments which are held for tradig and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as st FVTPL

Gamns and losses on these financial assets are never recyeled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income n the statement of profit and loss when the nght of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case. such gains are recorded m OCH Equity instruments designated at
fair value through OC| are not subject 1o impairment assessment

Embedded Derivatives

A denvative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a finaneial hiability or non-financial host. is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate dervative 1f) the economic cliaracteristics and
nisks are not elosely related 1o the host. a separate mstrument with the same terms as the embedded denvative would meet the definition of a derivative. and the hybrud contract 1s not measured at fmr
value through profit or loss. Embedded dervatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only oceurs if there is either a change in the terms of’
the contract that sigmificantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a finaricial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category

Derecogn
A finaneral asset (or where applicable. o part of a financial asset or part of 8 Group of similar financial assets) is primanly derecognised (i.e removed from the Group's statement of financial position)
when

- The rights to receive cash Nows from the asset have expired, or

- the Group has transferred its rights to recerve eash flows from the a
through” arrangement and either,
() the Group has wransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transterred nor retmned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assel

et or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash Nows in full without material delay 1o a third party under a “poss

When the Group has transferred s nights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered nto a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retamed the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retaned substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transterved control of the asset, the Group continues (0 recognise the ransferred asset
1o the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case. the Group also recognises an associated hability. The transferred asset and the associated lability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained

s the form of a guarantee over the transterred asset is measured at the lower of the origmal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

Conunuing involyement that
that the Group could be required to repay

Impairment of financial assets

Ly maodel for measurement and recogmtion of impairment loss on the following fimaneial asset and credit risk expostre

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Group applies expected eredit losses(

= Financial assets measured at amortized cost,

- Financial assets measured af fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOC),
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual eash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash Mows that the Group expects to reecive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash Nows will include cash flows trom the sale of collateral held or other eredit enhancements that are miegral to the contractual terms.

mificant inerease in credit risk sinee imtial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that resull from

ECLs are recogmised 1n two stages For eredit exposures for which there has not been & s
default events that are possible within the next [ 2-months (a | 2-month ECL). For those eredit exposures for which there has been a significant inerease in eredit risk sinee intinl recognition. a loss
allowanee 1s required for eredit losses expected over the remaiming life of the exposure, respective of the tming of the default (a lifetime FCL)
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(ii)

The Group follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
- Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;
- All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather , it recognizes impairment loss allowanee based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from
its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates, Al every reporting date. the historical observed defaull rates are updated
and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
“other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss, The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

(#) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet The
allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet. 1o as a liabihity.

(¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do not reduce the carrving amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the
accumulated impairment amount.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabil are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs, The Group financial
liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade payables, trade deposits, retention maney, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subscquent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(11) Finaneial liabilities ut amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include linancial labilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationship as defined by Ind AS 109, The separated embedded derivate are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109
are satisfied. For Labilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable 1o changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These pains/ loss are not subsequently
transferved to profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such lability are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss. the Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This category is most relevant to the Group. Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest raic method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as through
the Effective interest rate amortization process. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral pan of
the Effective interest rate. The Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Trade and other Payables

T'hese amounts represents habilities for goods and services provided 1o the Group prior to the end of lnancial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually pad
within 30 to 180 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using Effective interest rate method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 1o
make o payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently. the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of IND AS 109 und the amount recognized less cumulative amortization

Derccognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing linancial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is weated as the derccognition of the oviginal
liability and the recognition of a new lability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts 1s recognized m the statement ol profit and loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financials assets and hnancial labilities are otiset and the net amount 1s reported i the bulimee sheet 11 there 18 a currently enforceable legal nght 1o otlset the recogiized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, o realize the assets and settle the habilities simultancously.
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Reclussification of financial assets/ financial liab s

The Group determies classification of financial asscts and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are cquity
instruments and financial liabilitics, For financial ussets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those asscts,
Changes to the business model are expected 1o be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model as o result of external or internal changes which
are significant 1o the Group's operations, Such changes are evident to external partics. A change in the business model oceurs when the Group either begins or ceases 1o perform an
activity that is significant 1o its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets. it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model, The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Orignal Classification Revised classification Accounting treatment
Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortised cost and fair value
is recognised in profit or loss.
FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassilication date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR is caleulated based on the

Nnew gross uun’ying amount.
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous amortised cost and fair value
is recognised in OCL No change in EIR due 1o reclassification,

FVTOCI Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrving amount, However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the assel is measured as if it had always
been measured at amortised cost,

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carvying amount. No other adjustment is required
FVTOC| FVTPL Assets continue 1o be measured at fair value. Comulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC s
reclassified from equity to profit or loss the reclassification date.

2.09 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative linancial instruments such as forward contracts 1o hedue its torcign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subscquently re-mcasured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the faic value is positive and ns
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of o derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and
continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the Group's expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, exeept tor the effective portion of cash Mow hedges, which is recognised m
OCHand later reclassitied w profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if s hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

(i) Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

(ii) Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash Mows that is cither attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast ransaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

(i1i) Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

(i) Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs, The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and Ic linance costs,

For fair value hedges relating o items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining wrm of the hedge using the EIR
method. EIR amortization may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk
being hedged.

IFthe hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an unrecogmsed firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the
subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an assct or lability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in

profit and loss,

(i) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OC in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss,

The ineffective portion relating to forcign currency contracts is recognised in finance costs and the incffective portion relating to commadity contracts is recognised in other income or

expenses,
Amounts recognised as OCH are transterred 1o profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale oceurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recogmised as OCT are transferred to the initial
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

IFthe hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation us a hedge is revoked, or when
the hedge no longer meets the eriteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC1 remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction oceurs or

the foreign currency firm commitment is met.
2,10 Inventories
a)  Basis of valuation:

i) Inventories other than scrap materials are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of ohsoleseence, if any, However, materials and other items held for
e in the production of inventories are not written down below cost unless the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost, The

mparison ol cost and net realizable value is made on an iem-by-item basis,

©
i) Inventory of scrap materials have been valued at net realizable value
by  Methaod of Valuation:
1) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using first i, first out (FIFO) basis method and compris
tecoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

s all costs of purchase, duties, taxes {other than those subsequently

i) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direet labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads. Fixed production overheads are allocated
on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. Cost is determined on FIFO basis.
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a)

b)

2.1

b

i) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using FIFO basis method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, 1axes (other than those subsequently recoverable from fax
authorities) and all ather costs incurred in bringing the nventories to their present location and condition,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinury course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and ltabilities atributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Income Tax expense for the vear comprises of current tax and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax. assets and liabilitics arc measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authoritics of respeetive jurisdiction of group companics by
using applicable tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the parent company and
its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respeet (o situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will aceept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most
likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides o better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).Current tax
items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax s provided in full using the liability method on temporary differences aris 1 between the tax bases of assets and liabiliti
financial statements. However, deferved tax liabilitics are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, Deferred income tax is also not accounted for il it ariscs
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. 4t the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prolit
or loss. Deferred tax lability is not recognised In respeet ol taxable temporary differene ociated with invesiments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be contralled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

nd their carrying amounts in the consolidated

&

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 1ax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused wx credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except;

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.,

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the loreseeable future and taxable profit will be availuble against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred lax assets are re-assessed al cach reporting date and are recognized 1 the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax assets and liubilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the vear when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of prafit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or direet in cquity.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets. the Group relies on the same lorecast assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports,
which, among other things. reflect the potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of praduction as a result of measures to reduce carbon

emission,

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities it and only if it has a legally enforceable tight to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred 1ax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either 1o setlle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. in cach future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilitics
Revenue from contract with customers

The Group manufactures/ trades and sells a range of agrochemical products. Revenue from contracts with customers volving sale of these products is recognized at a point in time when
control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled obligation that could alfect the customer's acceptance of the products which usually happen on delivery of goads.
Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and control has been transferred to the customers. The Group has abjective evidence that all eriterion for acceptance
has been satisfied. A reccivable is recognised when the control of the product is transterred as the consideration is unconditional and payment becomes due upon passage of tune as per
the terms of contract with customers, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or reccivable, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts, volume rebates, Goods and Serviees twx (GST) and amounts collected an behalf of third partics

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the paint in time when control of the goods is transferred 1o the customer, generally on delivery of ihe goods and there are no unfulfilled
terved for a price, and significant risks und rewards have been transferred and no effective ownership control is retained.

obligations when the property in the goods is tran

The Group considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations. 16 which a portion of the transaction price needs Lo be
allocated. In determinmg the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effeets of variable consideration. the existence of significant financing components,

noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (il any).

(h Variable consideration

The Group recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade di
volume rebates. I the consideration in o contract includes a varisble amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that o signilicant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not seeur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group operates severul
customers are eligible for several benefits on achievement of underlying conditions as prescribed in the scheme programme such as credit
scheme program give rise to variable consideration and Revenue from contract with customer is presented after deducting as

i

)}

ein the

sales incentive programmes wh
notes, tours, reimbursement, imcentives ete. The
cost ol all these schemes,
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(iii) Significant Financing Components

In respect of short-term advances trom its customers, using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of a significant financing component if’ it expects. at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service o the customer and when the
customer pays for that good or service will be within normal operating cycle.

In respect of long 1erm contracts, the Group has used the incremental borrowing rate to discount the consideration as this is the rate which commensurate with rate that would be
reflected in separate financing arrangement between the Group and its customer.

(b) Contract balances

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred 1o the customer. I the Graup performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due. a contract assct is recognised for the carned consideration that is conditional. A receivables represents the
Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial
assets in section (Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement),

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. 11 a customer pays cansideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever 1s earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer),

A trade receivable is recognised il an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of ime is required before payment of the consideration is duc). Relfer to
aecounting policics of financial assets in section (Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement),

2.13  Other Income

2,14

(i

() Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured cither at amortised cost or at fair value through ather comprehensive income, interest income s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments ar receipts over the expeeted life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
grass carrying amount ol the financial assel or lo the amortised cost of a linancial liability. When caleulating the efTective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses, Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and applicable interest rate. Interest income is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss.

Other Operating Revenues

(1) Export benefit

Revenue from export benefits arising (rom duty drawback scheme and merchandise export incentive scheme are recognised on export of goods in accordance with their respective
underlying scheme at fair value of consideration received or receivable. Accordingly, export incentive income is included m the statement ol profit and loss,

Retirement and other employee henefits

Shori-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognized in respect of employee serviee uplo the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected 1o be paid when the labilities are settled,
The labilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a)

b)

k)

Gratuity
The Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India &
HDEC, The labilities with respect 1o Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the batance sheet date, based upon which the Group
contributes to the Gratuity Scheme, The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as
assets/ (liability) in the books, Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recagnizes the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

eains and Tosses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

) Service costs Comprising Current service Costs, pust-service costs
b) Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts ineluded in net interest on the net defined benefit lizbility), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit
or eredit to retained camings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they oceur, Remeasurements are not reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form ol provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Group recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. I the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date. then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent

that the prepayment will lead 1o, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Compensated absences
Accumulated Ieave is treated as short-term employee benefit, The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects 1o pay as a resull ol

the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expeeted cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders
the related service. Such compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit methad al the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current finaneial liability in the balance sheet, sinee it does
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

not have an unconditional right o defer its
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d)  Other employee benefits
Employees (including sentor executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share based payment transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration
for equity instruments, In accordance with recognition and measurement principles as preseribed in Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the fair value of aptions granted under the
Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) cumulative expense is recognized as an employee benefit expense witl corresponding increase in share based payment (SBP) reserve in
equity for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent 1o which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or eredit recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense,

Leases

The Group assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right (o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration,

Group as a lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease Tor building, The Group applies a single recognition and measurcment approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilitics to make lease payments and right-of-use asscts representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured at cosl, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, Ri ght-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the leasehold building (i.e. 3-5 years)

It ownership of the leased asset transfers o the Group at the end of the lease term or the eost refleets the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated
uscful life of the asset. The right-of-use asscts are also subject 1o impairment, Refer to the accounting policics in scction ‘Impairment ol non-finaneial assets’,

ii) Lease Liabilities

(i)

17

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease linbilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected 1o
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if' the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option 1o terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produee mventonies) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs.

In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.. changes to luture payments resulting from
a change inan index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset,

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The [inance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balunce of the liability for each period,
Variable lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those pavments oceurs,

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recagnition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). 1t also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered 1o be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases ond
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arcanging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised
as revenue in the period in which they are ¢amed.

Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated hy dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, banus element in a rights issue, share split, and
reverse share split (consolidation of shares) it uny that have changed the number of cquity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. Ordinary shares that will be
issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are included in the caleulation of basic carnings per share from the date the contract is entered into

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effeet of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged 1o Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effective interest rate (E1R)
method. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange differences 1o the extent regarded as an adjustment to the horrawing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset, All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they oceur,
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

2.20

i

(ii)

(iii

2.2

2.2

)

(iv)

-

=

e

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash and subjeet to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short
liquid investments with origi
and bank overdralls. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

erm, highly
maturitics ol three months or less that are readily convertible (o known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignilicant risk of changes in value,

Foreign currency translation
Functional und presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measuted using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The
Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Group's functional and presentation currency.,

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are generally recognised in the
statement of profit and loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary ilems
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of’ monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise with the exception of exchange
differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCLor profit or loss are also recognized in OCLor profit or loss, respectively),

Group companies

On consolidation, the results and financial position of foreign operations that ave a functional currency different from the presentation currency (INR) are translated to the presentation

currency (INR) in the following manner:

a) Assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date

h) Their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the wansactions, For practical reasons the group uses an average rate lo translale
income and expense ttems, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

¢) All resulting exchange differences arising on translation of financial statement of foreign operations for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income.

d) On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCT relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

©) Any Goodwill arising on the acquisition/business combination of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics arising on the
acquisition arc treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translaied at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

1) Gain or loss on a subscquent disposal of any forcign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of transition but includes only translation differences
arising after the transition date,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Praovisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to

reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific o the Liability, When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage ol time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is u possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the oceurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future evenls
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a lability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, the Group does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements unless the probability of outflow ol resources is remaote.

Provisions, contingent liahilitics, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at cach balance sheet date,

Dividend Distributions
The Group recognizes a liability to make the payment of dividend to owners of equity, when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group.
A corresponding amount 15 recognised directly in equity.

As per the corporate laws i India, a distribution s authorised when it is approved by the sharcholder:

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at cach balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The lair value

mption that the tranesction ta sell the asset or transter the Lability takes place either

measurement in basad on the pras
(1) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(i) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for thee asset or lability.

ible by the Group

The principal or the most advantageous market must be ag
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i)

b)

)

d)

)

£l

The fair value of an asset or liability ts measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act i
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it 10 another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which sulficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidgted financial statements are categorized within the fair value hicrarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques tor which the lowest level input that

rnificant Lo the fair value measurement s directly or mdirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized m the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hicrarchy by re-asscssing categorization { based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the end of cach reporting period,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above,

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, use estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenucs,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the grouping disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Group as n Leases

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease il it 1s reasonably certain to be excreised,
or any periods covered by an option fo terminate the lease, il'it 1s reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an cconomic incentive for it to excrcise cither the renewal or termination, After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affeets its ability to exercise or not 1o
exereise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction ol significant leaschald improvements or significant customisation lo the leased asset),

Revenue from confract with customers

Certain contracts ol sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration the Group has used a combination of most likely amount
method and expected value method. Further, as the case may be, in respect of long term contracts, the Group has used the incremental borrowing rate to the discount the consideration as
this is the rate which commensurate with rate that woulkd be reflected in separate financing arrangement between the Group and its customer.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect 1o the imerpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing ol future 1axable income. Given the wide range of business
relationships differences ar
expense already recorded, The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, The amount of such provisions is bused on various lactors, such as experience of previous oy

audits mnd differing mterpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority, (Refer Note 7)

ing between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments Lo tax income and

Defined benefit plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.c. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due o the complexity ol the

valuation, the underlying assumptions and its Tong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive o changes in these assumptions, All assumptions arc reviewed at cach
reporting date. In determining the appropriate discount rate. management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding 1o the
expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Future salury increases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 26(1).

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and (nancial babilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices m active markets, their (air value is measured
using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs o these models are taken (rom observable markets where possible, but where this is not

ree of judgment 1s required in establishing fuir values, Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
ctors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

al assefs

Impairment of finan

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expeeted loss rates. the Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and sclecting
the inputs to the impatrment caleulation, based on Group's past history .existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of cach reporting period.

Impairment of non-financind asseis

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired . If any indication exists, or when annual impairment festing for an asset is
required. the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
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h)

i

(i)

{ii)

{1ii)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

th

In assessing value in use | the estimated futare cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refleets current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market tunsactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used, These caleulations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patierns (i.c.. by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance), The provision matrix is
initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix o adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. At
every reporting date, the historical abserved default rates are updated and changes in the forward-fooking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
i circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note,

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets represent significant portion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic depreciationamortisation is derived
alter determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The uselul life and residual value of Group's assets are determined by
Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation
of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology.

Intangible asset under development

The Group capitalises intangible asset under development for a projeet in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management's Judgement that
technological and ceonomic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management
model

In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expeeted future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expeeted
period of benefits,

Standards / Amendments issucd:

The group has applied the following amendments to Ind AS for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing April 01, 2022

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022, 1o amend the following Ind AS whicl are
effective from April 01, 2022,

Oneraus Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeting the obligations under the contract costs (i.e.. the costs that the group cannot avold because it has the contract)
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The amendments specily that when assessing whether u contract is onerous or loss-making, an entity needs to include
costs that relate directly 1o a contract 1o provide goods or services including both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direet labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities (e.g.. depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate
directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The group applies the amendments to contracts for which it has not yel
fulfilled all of its obligations. at the beginning of the reporting period. These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group as there is no oncrous
contract withing within the scope of these amendments that arose during the year.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103: The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI's “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards™ with the reference to the “Conceptual Fromework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential *day 2°
gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix €,
Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the Concepiual
Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date, [n accordance with the transitional provisions, the group apphes the amendments prospectively, 1.e.,
to business combinations oceurring after the beginning of the annual reporting period i which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application), These amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no contingent assets, liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during

the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16: The amendments modified paragraph 17(¢) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess ol net
sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the direetly atnbutable costs considered as pant of cost of
an item of property, plant, and equipment, The amendments are effective for annual reporting periads beginning on or after April 01, 2022, These amendments had no mmpact on the
consolidated financial statements of the group as there were no sales of such items produced by property. plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - Fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities: The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or madified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial hability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behall, In accordance witl the transitional provisions, the group
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or afier the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment (the
date of initial application). These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group as there were no moditications of the group's financial instruments
during the vear,

Ind AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in Fair value measurements: The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of Ind AS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for taxation
when measuring the {air value of assets within the scope of Ind AS 41. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2022, The amendments
are effective for annual reporting pertods beginning on or afier April 01, 2022, The amendments had no impict on the consolidated financial statements of the group as it did not have
assets in scope of Ind AS 41 as at the reporting date.

fud AS 101 First-tune Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time adopter: The amendment permits a subsidiary that clects to apply the exemption in
paragraph D 16{a) of Ind AS 101 1o measure cumulative translation differences for all forcign operations in its financial stalements using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the
parent’s date of transition to Ind AS. il'no adjusiments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the
subsidiary. This amendment is also available to an associate or joint venture that uscs exemption in paragraph 216(a) of Ind AS 101, The amendments are cffective for annual reporting
pertods beginning on or afier April 01, 2022 but do ot apply to the Group as it is not a first-time adopter.
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2.26 Standards issued but not effective

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated March 31, 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 which amends ecrtain
accounting standards, and are effective April 1, 2023,

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities

use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur

on or after the start of that period.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group's financial statements,

Disclosure of Accounting Policics - Amendments to Ind AS |
The amendments aim 1o help entities provide accounting policy diselosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities (o disclose their *significant” accounting policies

with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entitics apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures,

The amendments to Ind AS | are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after April 01, 2023, Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107

The Group is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures 10 ensure consistency with the amended requirements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions thal give rise (o equal taxable and deductible femporary
dilferences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the carliest
comparative period presented. u deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations, Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101, The amendments 1o Ind AS 12 are applicable
for annual periods beginning on ar after April 01, 2023, The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As al
March 31, 2022

(A)  LOANS (carried at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loan to employees

(B) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (valued at amortised cost)

108.32

87.97

108.32

87.97

Particulars

As al
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good)
Sccurity Deposits

02.46 11342
Bank deposit under lien 379,38 21.23
471.84 134.65
Notes:
a.  Bank deposit under lien including interest acerued thereon represents deposits with sales tax authorities/margin imoney deposits.
INCOME TAXES
i For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulurs - :

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

() Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Income Tax

Current income tax charge

Adjustment to tax relating to carlicr years

Deferred Tax
Detierred Tax (credity charge
Adjustment to deferred tax relating to earlier vears

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(b) Other Comprehensive Income

(A)

(B)

(A+B)

1.261.23 1.171.68
237 (36.26)
1,263.60 1.135.42
(532.64) (151.86)
(16.92) .
(549.56) (151.86)
714.04 983,50

Particulars

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Current income tax on re-measurement (gains)/ losses on defined benefit plans {refer note 26(1)}

Income tax related to items recognized in OCT during the year

(¢) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate

-

12,99

(1.61)

12,99

(1.61)

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2022

Accounting Profit before tax
At India's s
Computed Tax Expense

Adjustment in respect of current income tax ol earlier years

Adjustment to deferred tax relating to carlier years

Non-deductible expense for tax purpose

Unabsorbed depreciation and carried forwarded tax losses

Fair value loss on finencial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Tax Impact o difference of tax rate of group companics

CSR expenses disallowed

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Tax impact due to indexation

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

At an effective income 1ax rate of 14.41% (March 31, 2022: (27.97%))

atutory tax rate of 25.17% (March 31,2021: 25 71%, April 1, 2020, 25.17%)

4,954.26 (3.516.41)
25 168% 25.168%
1.246.89 (885.01)
(7.30) (36.26)
(16.92) 37,30
5753 36,83
(59.67) 14.33
(588.93) 1.628.36
102,04 147.35
13,34 10,92
- 7.66
(28.26) :
714.04 083,56




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to lidated financial stat

ents for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless etherwise stated)

(d) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) comprises:

Charged to

Other

— As at As at Statement of profit
articulars
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 and loss L
income
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets: Impact of difference between (283.39) (295.98) 12.59 -
tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting
Right of Use as per Ind AS 116 (29.24) (61.88) 32.64 -
Deferred tax (liability) (312.63) (357.86) 45.23 -
L.ease liability as per Ind AS 116 32.60 64.91 (32.31) -
Expenses allowable on payment basis 177.32 131.45 4587 12.99
Allowance tor doubtful debts 757.79 639.05 118.74 a
Provision for impairment contingencies for intangible assets under development 74.48 74 48 5
Unabsorbed depreciation and carried forwarded tax losses 561.49 545,85 15.64 -
Shares based paviment reserve 51.61 5330 (1.69) .
Derivative instrument - foreien currency forward contract (at fair value through profit and loss) 120.58 78.98 41.60
Unrealised profit on inventory 354.67 5346 301.21
Tax impact duc to indexation 28.26 - 28.20 -
Delerred tax asset / (liability) 2.158.80 1.641.48 517.32 12.99
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 1.846.17 1.283.62 562.55 12.99
() Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)
Particulars AL £t
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 1.312.20 1.150.30
Credited/(Charged) during the year
- to Profit and Loss Account 570,01 163.78
- 1o Other comprehensive income 13.40 (.88}
583.41 161.90
Closing balance 1.895.61 1,312.20
() Deferred tax liability pertaining to one of the subsidiary
Barticalais As at As at
AR March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance (28.58) (1745)
Credited/(Charged) during the year
- o Profit and Loss Account (20.45) (1.4
- 10 Other comprehensive income (040 0.27
(20.80) (i
Closing balance (49.44) (28.58)
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
As at As al

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good)

Capita) advances | refer note 25(B) | 103.36 145,12
Tax deposited under protest | refer note 25(A) | - 12,82
Prepaid expenses 36.02 5.71
139.38 163.65
INVENTORIES
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(Valued at lower of cost and net vealisable value unless stherwise stated)
Raw material and Packing material

Works-in-process

Finished goods

Traded Goods

Stores, Spares and Consumables

15.516.13 8.206.60
5.677.04 381745
6.571.97 12.081.24
6.178.38 2.142.52

167.36 183.25

34.110.88

26.531.06




Parijat Industries (Indin) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

(Al amounts in Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars At At
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Notes:
(a)  The above includes goads m transit as under:
Raw materials 2.52088 285234
Fimshed goods 1,435 23 5,989 52
Traded goods 24760 395 49
() Inventories are hypathecated with the bankers against working capital limits. {refer note 12}
¢y During the year ended March 31, 2023 Rs 45 28 Lakhs , March 31, 2022, Rs Nil, was recognised as an expense for mventories carned at net realisable value and based on ageng of material
9 CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(A} TRADE RECEIVABLES (valued at amortised cost)
As al As al
icul A
Bartleufars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Unsecured
Trade receivables from contract with customers- considered good 27.051.26 |8,828.05
Trade receivables from contract with customers - considered good - from related parties (refer note 26(3)) 33043 14942
Trade receivables from contraet with customers- credil impaired 350912 2.810.68
Trade receivables (gross) 3115081 21.788.15
Less: Imparment allowance for irade recevables - Credit inpaired (3.569.12) (2R10.68)
Trade receivables (net) 27.581.69 18.977.47
Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 Months | 6 Months - 1 Year 1-2 Yenrs 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered 20.155.04 7.007 54 32274 96.37 - - 27.581.69
wood
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have ¢ ] E & - -
significant inerease in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired 5 - 461.99 891.04 481.08 197 36 2,031,447
Dispuited Trade receivables - considered good . - - » . 3 -
Disputed Trade recervables - which have . . - = " -
significant merease i eredit risk
Disputed Trade recervables - credit mpared E = 4991 253.82 471 68 16223 1.537.64
Total 20.155.04 7.007.54 834,04 1.241.24 952.76 959,59 31.150.81
Asat March 31, 2022
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 Months | 6 Months - | Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Undisputed Trade Recevables - considered 13,182 85 5,461 8RS 281,06 517 - 18.977.47
wood
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have > - - - - -
sigmificant increase m credit nisk
Undisputed Trade recevable — eredit impaired 614,34 133.39 531 92 465 84 474 98 222047
Disputed Trade recervables - considered good - . = = E -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have -3 R - = s . -
significant inerease in eredit risk
Disputed Trade recetvables - credit impaired 3 - - 66,19 167 81 356,21 590,21
Total 13,797.19 5,505.24 812,98 583.74 642.79 356.21 21.788.15

Notes:

a) Trade receivables are usually on trade terms based on eredit worthiness of customers is per the terms of contraet with customers

Iy} No trade or other recewable are due from directors or other ¢

respectively m which any director is a partner, i director o1 a member

¢) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are senerally on terms of 90- 180 days

dy Ageing of trade receivable and movement of impairment allowance for expected eredit loss is disclosed m note 200510

¢) There are no unbilled recevables. hence the same is ot required to be disclased in the ageng schedule

ers of the company either severally o jomtly with any other person. Not any trade or other v

ceivable are due from fioms o private companies




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(B) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Balances with banks:

Current accounts 1.530.20 2.685.29
Cash credit account 255.96 93.14
Cash on hand 4517 10530
Fixed deposit having original maturity of less than theee months a 1.322.22
Total cash and cash equivalents 1.831.33 4.205.95
Note: There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.
(C)  OTHER BANK BALANCES
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Margin money deposit with bunks L023.5] L647.40
102351 1.647.40
Note: Margin money deposils represents deposits 1o seeure the letter of eredits,
(D) LOANS (carricd at amortised cost) As at As at
(Unsecured, considered good) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loan to employees £9.09 82.38
89 09 82.38
(E)  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(Unsceured, considered goad)

Security Deposits (at amortised cost)

Derivative instrument - forcign curreney forward contract (at fair value through profit and loss)
Other receivable (at amortised cost)

75.99 74.57
5.48 90.72
- 0.53
81.47 165.82

Note : Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign exchange forward contracts that are pot designated (n hedge
relationships, but are, nevertheless, intended 10 reduce the level of foreign currency risk for sales and purchases, The fair value gain is included in the statement of profit and loss.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good)

Advances for material and services

Balinee with government authorities:

Export incentives receivable [refer note (a) belaw!
Prepaid expenses

Other advances

Note:
() Export incentive receivable includes assistance in the form of export incentives under forcign trade policy and budgetary support.

The table below gives information bout movement im export incentives receivables:-

Openme Balance

Add: Grant Income acerued during the vear {refer note (16)!
Less: Government grant received during the vear

Closing Balance

660.16 560,36
5.202,05 3.076.44
184.48 AR6.17
330,16 62401
4051 4818
6.417.36 4.695.46

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

386,17 529.42
563.00 334,21
(764.78) (477.46)
184,48 386.17




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lukhs unless otherwise stated)

11 EQUITY

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at

March 31, 2022

(A) Share capital

a)  Authorized (nos.)

3.50.00,000 (March 31, 2022: 3,50,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10/ each 3.500.00 3.500.00
50,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 50,00,000) 0.01% compulsory convertible cumulative preference shares (CCCrs) 500.00 500.00
4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-
up (nos.)
2.96,39,587 (March 31, 2022: 20,454,840) equity shares of Rs 10/~ each (refer note (b) below) 2.963.96 2.045 48
2.963.96 2,045.48
b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the ¢od of the year
Equity shares
Asal As at

No. of shares

Rs, in Lakhs

No. of shares

Rs, in Lakhs

At the beginning of the vear
Addition in equity shares
Al the end of the year

20,454.840 2.045.48 20,454,840 2.04548
9.184.747 91848 - -
29,639,587 2,963,960 20,454,840 204548

Note: Addition of equity shares refers to equity share allotted in carlier year however recopnised as liability as per INDAS and transferred back 1o equity during the year afier

derecagnition of the hability.

©) Terms/rights attached to cquity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10/- per share (March 31, 2023 Rs 10/ per share), Each holder of equity shares is entitled o one vole
per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupecs, The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors of the Holding Company is subject 10 the approval of

the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeling.

Equity share capital includes 91,84,748 number of equity shares (March 31, 2022: 91.84.748) issued o private equity mvestors, Till last year, these were considered ns puttable
instruments and did not meet the conditions of equity classification as per Ind AS 32 "Financiul instuments: Presentation” as they carried pul right o sell on the Hokling

Compuny/promoters entire amount invested by the investor at fair value,
1 3

During the current year on March 28, 2023, Put Option clause has been withdrawn through amendment in share holders agreement {refer note 12(A)i)}. Hence these equity shares
now satisfied the condition of equity classification as per IND AS 32 "Financial instruments: Presentation”, Therefore the Holding Company has derecognised the carrying value of the

linbility as on March 28, 2023 and recoenised as other equity,

d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out helow (representing legal and beneficial ownership):

Name of sharcholder

As at

March 31,2023

As at

March 31, 2022

No. of shares

% holding

No. of shares

% holding

1 Promoter Group
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Mr. Keshav Anand 6.589.898 22.23% 6,886,298 23.23%
Mr. Vikram Raj Anand 4.770.300 16.09% 5.066,700 17.09%,
Mr. Sharat Anand 2224098 7.50% 2.224.098 7.50%
Mr, Shivraj Anand 1.892.598 6.39% 1.299,798 4.39%
2 Investor Group

Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid

India Agri Business Fund 1l Limited 9,184,747 30,99% 9.002 899 30.608%
REAL Trust-11 - 0.00% 91 848 0.31%

Note : As per records ol the company, including its register of member/shareholders and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

sharcholding represents both legal and benelicial ownership of shares




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financinl statements for (he year ended Mareh 31, 2023

(Allamounts in Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stuted)

t)

£)

(B)

Details of shares held by promoters

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares at  Change during the  No. of shares at | % of Total Shares % change during the
Promoter name the beginning of year the end of the vear
the year year
Keshav Anand 6,886,298 (296.400) 6.589.898 22.23% ~4.30%
Vikram Anand 5.066.700 (296.400) 4.770.300 16.09% -5.85%
Sharat Anand 2.224.09%8 - 2,224,098 7.50% 0.00%
Aditi Anand 84.200 - 84,200 0.28% 0.00%
Gautam Raj Anand 1,299,708 2 1.299.800 4,399, 0.00%
Parvati Anand 201,600 - 201.600 0.68% 0.00%
Sanya Anand 901.500 - 901,500 3.04% 0.00%,
Shivraj Anand 1.299.800 592,798 1.892.598 6.39% 45.61%
Shruti Anand 403.200 - 403.200 1.36% 0.00%
Uday Raj Anand 100,800 - 100,800 0.34% 0,00%
Vira) Anand 901,500 - 201,500 3.04% 0.00%
Harshi Anand 901 - 901 0.00% 0.00%,
Divjot Kaur (renamed as Mansha Kaur Anand) 1 - | (L00% 0,00%,
Anand Kumari Anand I - | 0.00% 0.00%
Puja Sood | - I 0.00% 0.00%
Radhika Anand | - | 0.00% 0.00%
Parijat Holdings Private Limited | - I 0.00% 0.00%
Total 19,370,400 - 19.370.400

As at March 31, 2022

No, of shares at

Change during the

No. of shares at

%o of Total Shares % change during the

Promoter name the beginning of vear the end of the vear
the year vear

Keshay Anand 6.886.298 - 0.886.298 23.234% 0.00%
Vikram Anand 5.066.700 - 5,066,700 17.00% 0,00%
Shavat Anand 2.224.098 - 2.224.008 7.50% 0.00%
Aduti Anand 84.200 - 84.200 0.28% 0L.00%,
Gautam Raj Anand 1,299,798 - 1.299.798 4.39% 0.00%
Parvati Anand 201.600 - 201.600 0.68%, 0.00%
Sanya Anand 901.500 - 901.500 3.04%, 0.00%
Shivraj Anand 1.299.800 - 1.299.800 4.39% 0.00%,
Shruti Anand 403.200 - 403,200 1.36% 0.00%
Uday Ruj Anand 100,500 - 100800 0,34%, 0.00%
Vira) Anand 901.500 - 901,500 3.04% 0.00%
Kuldeep Raj Anand 900 (200) - 0,00% =100.00%
Harshi Anand | 900 901 0.00% 90000.00%,
Divjot Kaur (renamed as Mansha 1 - 1 0.00% 0.00%
Kaur Anand)

Anand Kumari Anand 1 - | 0.00% 0,00%,
Puja Sood | - | 0.00% 0.00%
Radhika Anund 1 . | 0.00% 0.00%
Parijat Holdings Private Limited | - | 0.00% 0.00%

Total 19370400 19,370,400

Neither bonus shares issued nor shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date,

Shares reserved for issue under options

Information relating to Employee stock option plan including details of options issued. exercised and lapsed during the financinl year and

period are set oul in note 26{(6),

OTHER EQUITY

aptions outstanding at the end of reporting

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

General reserve

Shares based payment reserve
Retained earnings

Securities premium

Capilal Reserve

Foreign Fluctuation Reserve

Non controlling interests

111.93 111.93
205.08 211.84
6.061.36 2.228.25
6.204.17
7.677.35 -
23599 249.24
20.495.88 2.801.26
479,80 13534




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes ta consolidated finnncial statements for the year ended March 31. 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stited) -

Particulars Asal As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Notes:

()

()

(h)

()

(d)

(e)

n) General reserve 111.93 111.93

b) Share based paymeni reserve

Opening balance 211.84 172,53
Add Employee stock option expense during the year {net) (3.70) 1929
Add. Employee stock option settled during the yvear (3.06) -

Closing balanee 205.08 211.84

¢) Retained Earnings

)

o)

=

Opening balance 2,228 25 0,596 96
Net profit tor the year 4.179.29 (4,227 69)

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retnined earnings
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation. net of tax (em of OCH) (39.95) 4.40
Adjustment on account of acquisttion of non-controlling interest (9.83)

Dividends {refer note (13) below)

Equity dividend paid (296.40) 13169
Preference dividend pand - (13.73)
Closing balance 6,061.36 2,228.25

Security Premium
Opening balance B
Add: Addiion on account of derecognition of financial liability valued at FVTPL (refer note 12(A000) 6.204.17

Closing balance 6,204.17 -

Capital Reserve
Opening balanee
Add: Addition on account of derecognition of linancial lability valued at FVTPL (refer note 12(A)0)) 7.677.35 -

Closing balance 7.677.35 -

Foreign Fluctuation Reserve
Opening balance 24924 248 09
Exchange difference on translation of financial statements ol foreign operations (11.25) 025

Closing balance . 23599 249.24

Nature And Purpose Of Reserves
General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Aet 1956. peneral reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentase i accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of 11
transfers was to ensure that if 4 dividend distribution in a given year 1s more than 10% of the pard-up capital of the Giroup for that year; then the 1otal dividend distribution 15 less than the total distributable
results for that year, Consequent to mtroduction of Companies Act 2013, the réquirement to mandatorily transfer a specitied percentage of the net profit to-general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the
amount previously transferred to the seneral reserve can be utilised only 1n aceordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013

Share based payment reserve
The share based payment reserve 1s used 1o recogmise the grant date fair value of options issued 1o employees under Employee stock option plan

Retwined earnings

Retmned Earmings are profits that the Group has earmed il date less transfer 1o General Reserve dividend or other distribution or transaction with shareholders

Secu
The amount receved in excess of face value of the equity shares 1s recognised in securities premium. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such ns issuance of honus shares or redemption of
preference shares in accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act, 2013 Also Refer note 12(1)

es preminng

Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve represents the amount recorded on der ition of carrying value of equity shares invested by India Ag Business Fund 11 Limited ("Tnvestor”) and recogmsed i equity after adjusting the
equivalent amount of par value of such equity shares recorded as equity share eapital and equivalent amount of security premium invested by the mvestor Also Refer note 12 (1)

Foreign Fluctuation Reserve
Exchange differences ansimg on translation of' the forergn operations are recogmised i other comprelhiensive income as deseribed in aceounting policy and accumulated m Forern eurrency translation reserve
within equity The cumulative imnount 1s reclussitied to profit or loss when the net mvestment 1s disposed-oft’




Parijal Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Allamounts in Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

() Distributions made and proposed

For the year ended
March 31,2023

For the vear ended
March 31,2022

Dividends on cquity and preference shares declared and paid:
Equity dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2023: Rs 1,00 per share ( March 31, 2022; Rs 0.50 per share )

i : : (296.40) (131.69)
Preference dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2023; Nil. ¢ March 31, 2022: Rs 0,50 per share ) = U373
(296.40) (145.42)
Proposed dividends on equity and preference shares
Equity dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2023: Rs 1.00 per share (March 31, 2022: Rs 1.00 per share) (296.40) (204.55)
(296 .40) (204.55)
Notes:
Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability as at March 31, 2023
12 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(A)  Borrowings
Long term borrowings Short term borrowings
Particulars As at As at As al As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{a)  Term Loans
Foreign currency loan:
Unsecured loans From Related 3924 36.99 - A
party
Indian rupees loan (Secured) :
Warking Capital Term Loan from Banks 2.668.80 342799 s B
Term loan and working capital term loan from financial institution 35461 557.15
Vehiele loan from banks 274.23 270.80 - .
(b} Loans repavable on demand (Scecured)
Foreign currency loan:
Forcign bills discounted - - 36191 46426
Suppliers' credit - - 605,13 1.281.77
Buvers' credit = - = 457.50
Packing' credit - - 517.61 -
Indian rupees loan:  *
Working Capital Demand Loan - - 1743608 9.712,50
Cash credit from banks - - 907.50 23075
(¢} Eauity shares (unsecured ) at fuir value through profit and loss (FVTPL) (refer note (i) belo - 17.140.00 - -
(dy  Current Maturities of Long term borrowings
Current Maturities of Working capital term loan (692.66) (1.647.94) 692.66 1,647.94
Current Maturities of Term loan from linancial institution (204.46) (205.49) 204 46 205.49
Current Maturities of Vehicle loans (112.30) (105.27) 112.30 105.27
2,327.46 19.474.23 20.837.65 1410548

(This Space is fntentionally lefi blank)




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Ist Pari passu charge on ail the Movable Fixed Assets of the Borrower (both
present and future)

= 1st Pari passu charge on following Fixed Assets of the company;

a. Corparate office: M-77, 1st, 2nd and 3rd floor M- Block Markel, Greater
Kailash Part 11, New Delhi,

b. Village Khera Ganni, Tehsil Naraingarh, Distt, Ambala- 134201 Haryana,
Plot measuring 22 Kanals |1

marlas and 11 kanals comprising Khasra no, 43/18/1, 18/2, 19/1, 23/1, 23/2,
45/8/211, 8/3/1, 8/3/2,

871, 8/2/2, 13/1, 132, 312/, 3/2/2, 7/2/1, 7/212, T12/3, 71244 khera Gani

= Negative lien over the following tixed assets of the Company:

Village Mandhaur, Nuraingarh Road, Ambuala City 134003, Haryana, India,
Khata No. 321/360 comprising

Khasra No. 12/26/1/1, Khata No. 370/141 bearing Khasra No, 12/26/1/1/ (1-
13) | kanal 15 marlas+ plot

| Kanal 12 marlas bearing Khata No. 374/415, bearing Khaw no, 12/26/2 (2-
Sytplot | Kanal 13 marlas

bearing Khata no, 323/362 bearing Khasra no. 12/26/5 (1-13) hadbast no. 43
Fplot mearing 1 kanal 13

marlas beamg Kahta no, 314/348 beoring Khasra no, 12/26/3(1-13) vaks
rabka vill, Mandhaur tehsil and

distt, Ambala,

* Personul guarantees of three promoter directors namely Mr, Keshav Anand,
Mr. Vikram Raj Anand and Mr. Sharat Anand.

is repayable in unequal monthly instalments starting from
December 03, 2019 over a period of 36 months ending on
December 02, 2022, which got extended tll June 02, 2022

Rate of Interest : Carries rate of interest of IDFC First's 12
months MCLR plus 2.2% p.a. spread,

Nature of Security Terms of repayment and rate of interest Az al As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Waorking Capital Term loan from HDFC Bank by Leeds Life Science Private [Working Capital Term loan from HDFC Bank. 53.20 159,81
Limited 15 secured as lollows: The loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalinents over a
period of 5 years commencing tfrom December 31, 2019,
i} Charge of hypothecation on all current assets, Land and building and all
movable assets of the subsidiary company, Rate of interest : carries between 8.65% to 11.15% pa
it} Corporate guarantee given by holding company i.e. Parijat Industries
(India) Private Limited.
Working capital term loan (GECL) from Kotak Mahindra Bank is sccured as|Working capital term loan (GECL) from Kotak Mahindra 357.47 431,00
follows: Bank  The Loan is repavable in unequal monthly
By way ol hypothecation by way of second Pari Passu hypothecation chargefinstalments starting from June 10, 2022 over a period of 48
on all existing and future current assets of borrower except exclusivelyfmonths ending on May 10, 2026.
finances by any other financials instiwtion,
For Mortgage: Rate of Interest : Carries rate of interest 7.45% p.a. spread.
Second Pari pussu mortgage charge on immovable properties being land and
building sttuated at M-77, Ist, 2nd & 3rd Floor, M-Block Market, Greater|
Kailash Part [I, New Delhi- 110048 in the name of borrower
Second paripassu mortgage charge on properties being lands & building
situated at Village Khera Ganni, Rajpur Rani Road, P.O.- Village Fatchgarh,
Nuraingarh, District Ambala-134201, Harvana
Second Negative lien on Village Mandhaur Naraingarh Road, Ambala City-
134003, Haryana and
Personal guarantees of three promoter directors namely Mr, Keshav Anand,
Mr. Vikram Raj Anand and Mr, Sharat Anand. ‘
Working capitul term loan form IDFC First Bank Working capital term loan form IDFC First Bank The Loan . 635,65




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Nates to conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs, in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Nature of Security Terms of repayment and rate of interest Asat Agat
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Warking capital term loan (Guaranteed emergency credit line 'GECL') from|Waorking capital term loan (Guaranteed emergeney credit 1.716.50 1.473.00

RBL Bank: line 'GECL") from RBL Bank amounting to Rs 1716.50

1. 100% Guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trustee Company Lid|Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs 1473.00 Lakhs ). The Loan is

(NCGTC) repayable in unequal monthly instalments starting from

2. All existing security as per Sanction Letter no. CAIVDEL/0299/2021-22[April 30, 2022 over a period of 48 months after moratorium

dated 27.07.2021 shall be extended for this facility also, The same shall be[ranging from 12 months to 70 months. The loan is covered

extended in favour of RBL Bank on a second pari passu basis as sceurity for|under the sccurity provided for the working capital limits

the repayment of this loan as under:- availed by the company as mentioned in point (v} below on

3. 2nd pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets|second paripassu charge base and negative lien.

inclusive of stock and book debis, both present and future.

4, 2nd pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire Moveable Fixed|Rate of Interest @ Carries rate of interest 7.45% to 9.30%

Asscts, both present and future, (Except MFAs exclusively charged to term|p.a. spread (Mareh 31, 2022 7.45% to 8,36% p.a. spread)

lenders).

5. 2nd pari passu charge by way of Equitable mortgage on below mentioned

immovable propertics:

« M-77, Entire | st, Entire 2nd and Entire Terrace above 2nd Floor, M block

Market GK part -2 New Delhi (Commercial property)

* Village Khera Ganni Tehsil Naraingarh District Ambala Haryana, plot

measuring 22 kanals | marlas and 11 kanals. Comprising khasra no 43/18/1,

18/2. 19/ 1, 23/ 1, 23/2, 45/8/2/1, /3/1, 8/3/2, B/1, 8/2/2, 13711 372, 3/2/1

, 30202, 70200 7020271213, 71244, KheraGanni,

6. Negative lien over the following fixed assets of the Company:

Village Mandhaur, Naraingarh Road, Ambala City 134003, Haryana, India,

Khata No. 321/360 comprising Khasra No. 12/26/1/1, Khata No. 370/141

bearing Khasra No, 12/26/1/1/ (1-13) 1 kanal 15 marlast plot | Kanal 12

marlas bearing Khata No. 374/415, bearing Khata no. 12/26/2 (2-5)+plot |

Kanal 13 marlas bearing Khata no. 323/362 bearing Khasra no, 12/26/5 (1-

13) hadbast no, 43 +plot mearing 1 kanal 13 marlas beamg Kahta no.

314/348 bearing Khasra no. 12/26/3(1-13) vaka rabka vill, Mandhaur tehsil

Working capital term loan (GECL) from Indusind Bank: Working capital term loan (GECL) from Indusind Bank 210.36 27290
The Loan is repayable in unequal menthly instalments

Primary Sceurity : Sccond Pari=Passu charge on the entire current assets of[starting from May 31, 2022 over a period of 60 months|

the borrower, both present and future ending on April 30, 2026 including 12 months moratorium.

Collateral Security

I. Second Pari-Passu charae on entire Movable fixed asset of the Company,|Rate of Interest : Carries rate of interest 7.75% p.a. spread

both present & future.

2. Second Pari-passu on below mentiened properties of the company

= Commercial property- M=77,1 st, 2 nd & 3 rd Floor, M-Block Market, GK-

11, New Delhi (2,000 Square Feet);

« Agriculture land at village Khera Ganni, - Ambala- (19,995 Squarc Yards).

3, Negative Lien: Agriculture land at Village Mandhaur (Ambala) - (4052

Square Yards)

Working captal term loan (GECL) from HDFC Bank Working capital term loan (GECL) from HDFC Bank  The 331.27 435.63
Loan is repayable m unequal monthly instalments starting

Primary Securily : Second Pari-Passu charge on the entire current assets of|from April 27, 2022 over a period of 48 months afier

the borrower, both present and future. moratorium of 12 months ending on March 27, 2026,

Collateral Security

I Second Pari-Passu charge on entire Movable fixed asset of the Company, |Rate of Interest : Carries rate of interest 7.50% p.a. spread.

both present & future.

2. Second Pari-passu on below mentioned properties of the company :

+ Commercial property- M-77,1 st . 2 nd & 3 rd Floor, M-Block Market, GK-

11, New Delhi (2,000 Square Feer):

« Agriculture land at village Klhera Ganni, - Ambala- (19,995 Square Yards).

3. Negative Lien: Agriculture land ar Village Mandhaur (Ambala) - (4052

Square Yards)
Total 2.668.80 3.427.99

Nature of Security Terms of repayment and rate ol interest Muruil\; ‘li.' 2023 Mm.c:;:‘" 2022

Term loan from Tata Capital Fimancial Services Limited (TCFSL) has been|Term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 279.95 445,15

availed by Crimsun Orgamics Private Limited is seeured as follows: (" TCFSL) is repayable with tenure of 60 months,

1) First and exclusive charge of hypothecation on movable tangible assets of|[Rate of Interest: carries rate at long term lending rate less

the subsidiary company. 7.35% subject to minimum 10% per annum.

iy Lien on fixed deposit of Rs 225.00 lacs in favour of Tata Capital Financial

Services Limited from 1CICT Bank,

i) Corporate guarantee given by holding company i.c. Parijal Industrics

{India) Private Limited.




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All wmounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Waorking Capital Term loan (GECL) from Tata Capital Financial Services| Term loan from Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 74.66 112.00
Limited ("TCFSL) has been availed by Crimsun Organics Private Limited is|("TCFSL) is repayable with tenure of 48 months.
secured by corporate guarantee given by holding company ie. Parijat
Industries (India) Private Limited. Rate of Interest; carries rate at 10.50% p.a spread.
____Total 354.61 557,15
Nature of Security Terms of repayment and rate of interest Axat Asat
: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Vehick loan from banks in parent company and subsidiary company namely| Vehicle loan from banks is repayable in uncqual monthly 274.23 270.80
Crimsun Organics Private Limited is secured against hypothecation of|instalments over a period ranging from 36-48 months and
respective vehicles financed. sceured against  hypothecation of respective  vehicles
financed.
Rate of Interest : carries interest rate from 7.10% p.a o
11.00 " p.a.
Total 274.23 270.80
N | R . . As at As at
Nature of Security Terms of repayment and rate of interest March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Short term working capital facilities: Facility obtained for Foreign bill discounting from Kotak 361.91 464.26
It Pari passu charge on all the Movable Fixed Asscts of the Borrower (both|Mahindra Bank with Tenure in March 31, 2023 ranging
present and future) from 130 to 170 Days (March 31, 2022; 100 to 150 days)
« st pari passu charge on following Fixed Assets of the company: with Rate of interest in March 31, 2023; at 6.30% to 6.65%
a. Corporate officer M-77, Lst. 2nd and 3rd floor M- Block Market, Greater|[(March 31, 2022; at 0.94 % to 2.80% )
Kailash Part 11, New Delbi.
b. Village Khera Ganni. Tehsil Naraingarh. Distt. Ambala- 134201 Haryana.|Facility obtained for buyers credit from HDFC bank with - 457.50
Plot measuring 22 kanals | rate of interest at Nil (March 31, 2022: at SOFR +
marlas and 11 kanals comprising khasra no. 43/18/1, 18/2, 19/1. 23/1. 23/2,|200BPS).
45/8/2/1, 8/3/1, 8372, 8/1, 872/2, 1341, 13/2, 31241, 3/2/2, T/2/\, T/202, 77213,
7/2/4 khera Gani
Facility obtained for Suppliers Credit from banks (RBL and 605,13 1.281.77
« Negative licn over the following fixed assets of the Company: Indushnd) with Tenure ranging from 128 10 175 days with
Rate of interest in March 31, 2023 at 3.3% to 5.5% (March
Village Mandhaur, Naraingath Road, Ambala City 134003, Haryana, India,|31, 2022 at 1 % 1o 1.5% spread),
Khata No, 321/360 comprising
Khasra No. 12/26/1/1, Khata No, 370/141 bearing Khasta No, 12226/1/1/ (1-[Facility obtained for Packing Credit from banks (Kotak 517.61 -
13) | kanal 15 marlas* plot Mahindra Bank and DBS Bank) with Tenure of 90 days
| Kanal 12 marlas bearing Khata No. 374415, bearing Khata no. 12/26/2 (2-|with Rate of interest at 7.5% TO 7.90% spread. (Mareh 31,
S)eplot | Kanal 13 marlas 2032 -Nil)
bearing Khata no. 323/362 bearing Khasra no. 12/26/5 (1-13) hadbast no. 43| ————8 — - -
tplot mearing | kanal 13 Working Capital demand Luut! tucrhly. Sﬂllull\?llcd by B_auks 17,436.08 9.712.50
marlas beamg Kahta no. 314/348 bearing Khasra no. 12/26/3(1-13) vaka (RBL, DBS. Indusind. .“DH" IDFC, Axis and Kotak
rabka vill. Mandhaur tehsil and Bank) with lr:nurcf ranging from | day o 1}2 days with
distt, Ambala, Interest rate Ranging in March 31, 20223 from 8.5% to
9.85,% (March 31, 2022 from 2% 1o 11.80%)
» Personal Guarantee of promoters of the company - Cash Credil Tacilty from banks (RRL, Indusind, IDFC, 907.50 3075
a, Mr. Keshav Anand, . , FE e
b Me, Vikeant Anaiid #iid Axis and Kotak Bank) with interest rates ranging from
; MCLR plus 0.15% p.a. to MCLR plus 2.00% p.a. (March
% M Bharst Avind, 31,2022 ¢ from MCLR plus 0.70% pa. to MCLR plus
2.20% pa)
Total 19.828.23 12.146,78

Terms of amount invested by India Agri Business Fund 11 Limited ("Investor")

During the year, the sharcholder's have amended the shareholders agreement (SHA) dated June 08, 2016 on March 28, 2023, As a result of such amendment all buyback abligation
following failure to provide an exit to investor including 1PO, strategic sale, default, Private liquidity cte under such SHA shall stand limited 10 the Promoters only. Consequent lo the
above, the Holding Company has recorded gain of Rs. 2.340 lakhs to the Statement of Profit and Loss account on the date of amendment and transferred the carrying value of lability as

below:

(8) Re 018 A% lakhe ne cquity share capital.

(b) Rs. 6,204.17 lakhs as sccurities premium bemng equivalent amount of securitics premium invested by investor as above.
(c) Rs. 7.677.35 lakhs being remaining amount as capital reserve.

Loan covenants: Borrowings from banks contains certain financial covenants. The Holding company has not sitistied few of the financial covenants during the year ended Mareh 31,

2023 and Mareh 31, 2022, Further Holding compuny has not received any demand for repayment of loans from banks in respect of years for which debt covenunts

Due to this, Holding company has reclassitied the long term borrowing as short term borrowing,

The Group has not made any detault in the repayment of loans to banks including interest thereon,

have not been mel.




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts in Rs. in Lukhs unless otherwise stated)

(iv)  Change in liabilities arising due to financing activities during the year is give below:
Particulars Borrowings (Short term) Borrowings (Long term) Lease liabilities
For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year ended  For the year ended
ended ended ended ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 12.146.78 10.079.95 21.432.93 13.055.23 257.90 94,28
Addition on account of new leases during the year - - - - 31190
Lease Payment - - - (150.41) (181.13)
Fair value loss/{gain) on (inancial instruments at lair (2.340.00) ,470.00
through profit or loss
Derceognition of liability and recognised as equity - - (14.800.00) = = =
Exchange Fluctuation 10.96 20,63 - - - -
Cash flow (net) 7.686.15 2,046.20 (961.96) 1.907.70 - -
Interest expense 1.675.55 1.429.25 376.73 - 22.03 1285
Interest paid (1.691.21) (1.429.25) (370.82) - - -
Closing balance 19.828.23 12,146.78 3.336.88 21.432.93 129.52 257.90
Short term borrowings |refer note 19.828.23 12,146,778
12A}
Long term borrowings {refer note 232746 19.474.23
12A}
Current maturity of long term borrowings {refer note 12A} 1.009.42 1.958.70
Non current lease liability jrefer note 3109 129,52
12R!
Current maturity of lease liability 08.43 12838
trefer note 128!
(B) LEASE LIABILITIES
Particulars As.at Asal
— March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
A. Non-current
Lease liabilities | refer note 26(10) | 31.09 129,52
B. Current
Lease liabilities | refer note 26(10) | 98.43 12838
129.52 257.90_
(C) CONTRACT LIABILITIES

: As at As at
EApisulrs March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Advances from customers 2.606.36 3.543.85

____2.606.36 3.543.85
(D) TRADE PAYABLES (valued at amortised cost)

N As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Total owstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 156.27 199,57
Tolal outstanding due other than micro enterprises and small enierprises 32.239.63 23.262.03

32.395.90 23,461,060
Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars ) ) Total
IR Unbilled NotDue | Lessthan 1 Year|  1-2 Years 23 Vears | More than 3 Years

Taotal outstanding ducs of m:a"ro R 110,15 4429 130 0.34 0.29 156.27
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding due other than
micro enterprises and small 1.824.84 24.476.29 3,651.82 265.19 9.88 1.6l 32,239.63
cnlerpriscs
Disputed dues of micro enterprises c
and small enterprises
Disputed due other than micra .
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 1,824.84 24,586.44 5,096.11 206,39 10.22 11.90 32.395.90




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Unbilled

Not Due

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

More than 3 Years

Total

Total outstanding dues ol micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding due other than
micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed dues ol micro enterprises
and small enterprises

Disputed duc other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

1.559.28

196.34

0.819.86

2.60

11.385.96

0.34

334.37

0.29

47.05

115.51

199.57

23,262.03

Total

1,559.28

10,016.20

11,388.56

334.71

11551

23.461.60

Notes:

a) Trade Payables include due to related parties Rs 5.65 lakhs (March 31. 2022 ;
b) The amounts are unsceured and non-mterest bearing are usually paid within 30-90 days of recognition in domestic and 180 days in import,

¢) For terms and conditions with related parties. refer to Note 2643).
d)  Trade payable includes vendors whose payment are secured via Letter of eredit as at March 31, 2023 amounting to Rs, 6.271.75 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 6,244.53 Lakhs).

(E)  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (valued at amortised cost)

14.90 lakhs).

Particulars Al Asnt

i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current

Security deposit 41.64 35.50

Creditors for capital goods 53,20 146.94

Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract (at fair value through profit and loss) (net) 186,52 1.15

Sales incentives payable 2.543.38 2,053.54

Other payables 2.30 79.83
2.827,13 2.316,90

Note:

Forcign exchange forward contracts: While 1
purchases, these other contracts are not designated in hedge relationships a

head in the statement of profit and loss,

13 PROVISIONS

he Group entered into other forcign exchange forward contracts with the intention of reducing the forcign exchange risk of sales and
nd are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value loss is included in the Exchange difference

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Non Current
Provision for Gratuity {refer nate 26 (1)} 355.23 296.92

35523 206.92
Current
Provision for emplovee benelits
Provision for Gratuity {refer note 26 (1)} .65 1.13
Provision (or compensated absences 340.88 23877
342,53 239.90
14 OTHER LIABILITIES
As al As al
>, i e
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Current
Other statutory dues pavable 371.95 471.75
371.95 471.78
15 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Income tax payable (net of advance tax and tax deducted at source) Y3887 GO6.68

938.87 66668
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(All amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

16 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

a,
by,

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products

Other operating revenues
Export incentives
Commission Income
Scrap Sale

Naotes:

Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 are net of Goods and Service Tax (GST).

101 98138

78.091.95

(A) 101.981.38 78.091.95
563.09 12421

283.52 a
2228 13.78
(B) 868.89 347.99
(A) +(B) 102.850.27 78,439.94

Disaggregated revenue information set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenuc from contract with customers:

Revenue by location of customers

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

India
Outsicle India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

63,253.51 42.330,15
39,596.76 36,109.79
102,850.27 78,439.94

Revenue by timing of revenue recognition

Faor the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

Goods transferred at a point in time
Total revenue from contracts with customers

Add: Other operating revenue

101,981.38

78.091.95

101,981.38 78,091.95
868.89 347.99
102,850.27 78,439.94

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price

For the vear ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 112,040.92 85,778.30
Less: Rebates and Discount/Schemes 10,059.54 7.686.35
Total revenue from contracts with customers 101,981.38 78,091.95
Add: Other operating revenue 868.89 347.99
102,850.27 78,439.94

Contracl balances
As at Asal

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables {refer note 10(A)} 27.581.69 18.977.47
Contract liabilities (refer note 15) 2.606.36 3.543.85

Contract liabilitics consist of short-term advances received from customer to supply goods against the same,

Performance obligation

Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satistied when control of the goods is transterred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

OTHER INCOME

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

For the year ended

Murch 31, 2022

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Bank deposits

Interest on delays charged from customers

Others

Other non-operating income

Insurance claim received

Exchange Muetuation (net)

Gain on change in fair value of derivatives
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income (net)

949.02 04 93

139.70 58.50

10.91 1147

Sub total (A) 249,63 134.90
199.72 5

446,70 157,98

- 82.56

20,73 98.53

11.92 9.86

Sub total (B) 679.07 348.93

Total (A+B) 928.70 483.83
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18 COST OF RAW MATERIAL AND COMPONENTS CONSUMED

For the year ended

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventories lost due to fire

Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Cast of raw material and components consumed

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
8.306,60 8. 88708
51.189.95 4621415
- 24.85
15516.13 8.306.60
43.980.42 46,769.78

19 PURCHASE OF TRADED GOODS
For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Purchase of agrochemical products 30.615.27 15,107.99
30.615.27 15,107.99
20 (INCREASEYDECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS
For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 12.081.24 7.751.30
Traded goods 2.142.52 1.571L.74
Waork-in-progress 3481745 1.454.49
18.041.21 11,177.53
Inventories al the end of the year
Finished goods 6,571.97 12.081.24
Traded goods 6,178.38 2.142.52
Work-in-progress 5,677.04 381745
18.427.39 18.041.21
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and traded goods (Increasce) (386.18) (6.863.68)
21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
For the vear ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, wages, bonus and other benefits 7.731.06 6.916.41
Contribution 1o provident fund and other funds 226,99 186,32
Giratuily expense |refer note no. 26¢ 1)} 101.98 92,29
Stafl welfare cxpenses 439 64 464 80
8.499.67 7.659.82
22 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
For the year ended  For the year ended
darch 31, 202 nrch 31, 2022
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {reler note 3) 775.71 610,80
Depreciation of Right of use assets (vefer note 26(10) (i) ) 131.92 163.90
Amortization of intangible ssets (refer note 4) 800.51 571.44
1.708.14 134623
23 FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest expenses

-on borrowings

-exchange differences as an adjusument 1o borrowing cost
-others

Interest on lease liability

Interest on Income Tax

Other finunce charges

2.052.2% 1.429.25
89.79 34,31
19.00 17.32
2203 32.85
72,60 0.28

317,75 24478

2.573.45 1.758.79
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24 OTHER EXPENSES

For the year ended

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and [uel
Sub-contracting expenses
Repair and maintenance
- Plunt and machinery
- Buildings
- Others
Rent | refer note 26 (10) }
Travelling and Conveyance
Legal and professional fees
Sales commission
Insurance
Freight and forwarding charges
Carry and Forwarding agents service charges
Product testing expenses
Directors' sitting Fee
Advertising and sales promotion
Research and Development
Printing and slationery
Communication costs
Payment to auditors (refer details below)
Bad debts
Impairment allowance for trade receivables - credit impaired
Impairment allowance for advances considered doubtiul
Impairment allowance for intangible asscls under development (refer note 4)
Rates and taxes
Bank charges and commission
CSR expenditure {refer note 26 (iv)}
Loss on sale of plant, property and equipment (net)
Hazardous waste disposal
Loss on change in fair value of derivatives
Miscellancous expenses

Payment to auditors

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
414.07 44331
601.06 3ot
22581 59,60
120.74 149.53

16.31 2596
K188 130.40
654.22 532.59
1.508.25 1.052.42
891,54 RB51.80
331.97 373.17
269.56 266.16
449866 1.759.83
175.63 179.45
138.66 97.56
20.22 12.63
1.807.R4 701.25
15.27 19,20
80,92 62.71
91.46 91,17
30.01 43,90
154.90 105,11
793.05 273.97
a 0.71

977 E
116.42 55.02
21351 86,86
71.66 43.41
7.12 17.13
85.17 87.56

270.62 -
468.64 158.71
14,173.94 10.191.25

For the vear ended  For the year ended

As anditors:
Audit fees

In other capacity
Certification fees
Reimbursement ol expenses

(This Space is intentionallv lefi blank)

March 31,2023 March31.2022
3511 40.00
2.50 21.50
1.40 1.40
39.01 43.90
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25 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Contingent Liabilities

Claims/suits filed against the Group nol acknowledged as debis {refer note () below ) 74.61 78.59
Disputed tax labilitics in respeet of pending cases {Amount deposited under protest Rs Nil

arch 3 2022 3 Trefo . o o 1 -
(March 31, 2022: Rs 12,82 lakhs)} {refer note (b) and (d) befow | 145.81 1.333.55

220.42 1412.14

Note:

i) Claims / suits filed against the group not acknowledged as debis represents various legal cases filed against the group on account of labour dispules, accidental claims, product claims
and technical product failures ete. The Group has disclaimed the lability and defending the action. The Group has been advised by its legal counsel that its position is likely o be
upheld in the litigation process and accordingly no provision {or any liability has been made in the linancial statements.

b) Disputed tax liabilitics are on account of disallowances / additions made by the income tax department. The Group is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax
advisors. believe that its position will likely to be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly no provision has been acerued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised.
The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse effect on the group's financial position and results of operations.

¢} In respect of one of subsidiary company namely "Crimsun Organics India Private Limited” the suits ave filed by Deputy Director, Industrial Safety and Health, Cuddalore against the
Director of the subsidiary company in capacity of an oceupier of the factory on account of charges for violation of Tamil Nadu Factories Act, 1948 and Tamil Nadu Factory Rules,
1950, The subsidiary company has disclaimed the liability and defending the action and has been advised by its legal counsel that its position is likely to be upheld in the litigation
process and accordingly no provision for any liability has been made in the financial statements. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have
a material adverse effect on the group's financial position and results of operations,

d) Assistant Commissioner has passed Order No: 02/2023 — GST dated January 18, 2023 Division Cuddalore, Trichy for demand amounting to Rs 14.38 lakhs plus interest w/s S0(3) of
CGST Act. 2017 plus penalty of Rs. 1.43 lakhs are on account of claim incligible tax credit in respect of Capital goods claimed through GST Tran-1 in respeet of which subsidiary
company namely "Crimsun Organics India Private Limited" has filed appeal with Jomt Commissioner Appeals on March 03, 2023 against the same and deposited 10% of disputed
lax amount. The subsidiary company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position will likely to be upheld in the appellate
process and accordingly no provision has been acerued in the financial statements for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding
will not have a material adverse effect on the group's financial position and results of operations.

¢) In respect of one of subsidiary company namely "Leeds Life Science Private Limited" had claimed MEILS incentive on export of its products (@3% instead ol 2% due to interpretation
of classification of few products in past years. The differential amount along with interest as on date amounting to Rs, 38.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 38.00 lakhs) was aceepted
and paid by the subsidiary company to commissioner of customs Nhava sheva and has been included m the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2020
Subsequent to making this payment, company has received show cause notice dated 28th July 2020 from Directorate of Revenue Intelligence Ahmedabad, secking as to why there
shall be no penalty that shall be imposed on the company and thats why respective exported goods should not be confiscated. custom duty of incligible MEIS benefits availed and
utilized should not be recovered back and that such amount Rs. 38.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 38,00 lakhs) paid by the subsidiary company should not be appropriated against the
amount due to be recovered.

Subsidiary company vide its reply dated September 08, 2020, denied all the allegations in Show Cause Notice and stated that allegations are being made in the show cause notice
without appreciating the factual and legal position in proper perspecetive. The Commussioner of Customs. Delhi has passed order dated February 15, 2023 in which Parent Company
"M/s. Parijat Industrics (India) Private Limited”, a party to this case has already deposited penalty of Rs.45.19 lakhs, The subsidiary company has not received any closure letter of
the matter and the management believes that ultimate resolution of the matter will not have any material or adverse impact on the Group's financial position.
B Capital commitments
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a)  Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be exeeuted and not provided for 985.98 746,33
Less: Capital advances (refer note 7) (103.30) (145.12)
_§82.61 60121
b)  As per Clause no, 10(xviii) of the EC leuer F. No. TA-J-1101 [/207/201 8-IA Tl{T) dated March 28, 2019 issued by MOEF & CC, the subsidiary company namely "Crimsun Organics India

Private Limited" is committed for allacation of funds for the Corporate Environment Respansibility (CER) which shall be 5% of the total project cost. The tatal projeet cost that has been

approved under the EC letter 1s Rs. 3,060.00 lakhs and accordingly the Corporate Environment Responsibality (CER) spend will be Rs. 153.00 lakhs out of which the subsidiary company

has spent Rs, 28.69 lakhs as on March 31, 2023,

¢ Financial guarantees contracts

The Parent Company has issued financisl guaranices to banks on beball of and in respeet of loan facilities availed by its subsidiaries companies. The Group has classified financial
suarantees as financial mstuments in accordance with Ind AS 109 and accordingly hus recognized corresponding investments and income in the balance sheet and statement of profit and
loss under these contracts,

2 Corporate Guarantee given to RBL Bank Limited amounting to Rs 850.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs 850,00 lakhs), 1o Axis bank Limited amounting Rs, 2588.00 lakhs (March 31,
2022 : Rs Nil) and Tata Capital Financial Service Limited amounting to Rs.750.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 750.00 lakhs) for facilities availed by one of its subsidiary namely
"Company Crimsun Organics Private Limited” for working capital and term loan facilities. Outstanding term loan trom Tata Cupital Financial Service Limited as ut March 31, 2023
was Rs, 332,10 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs 557,15 lakhs) and Letter of credit from RBL Bunk Limited owtstanding as at March 31, 2023 were Rs. Nil (Mareh 31, 2022 Ks, 54252
lakhs) and Axis Bank Limited were Rs.1,333.14 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. Nil). The Goup based on assessment of linancial position and business plans in place, believes that
chances of materialising this lability is remote,

b Corporate Guarantee given 1o HDFC Bank Limited amounting (o Rs. 1500.00 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs, 1500.00 lakhs) for facilities availed by one of the subsidiary company
namely "Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited” for working capital and term loan facilities. Ouistanding of Term Loan from HDFC bank Limited as a1 March 31, 2023 is Rs, 53.20
lakhs (March 31, 2022 is Rs. 159.81 lakhs). Letter of credit amounting to Rs, 742,73 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs Nily, Buyers Credit from HDFC Bank of Rs Nil (March 31,2022
Rs 457.50 lakhs). The Group hased on assessment of financial position and business plans in place, believes that chances of materialising this lability is remote,
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Provident fund
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund (PF) dated February 28, 2019, The group has not made any provision in the books in
the current or previous financial year in the absence of authorative guidance. Further, group will update its provision if any, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Others

i) The Parent Company had received refund of terminal excise duty during the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16 from the Director of Foreign Trade (DGFT). Ahmedabad on the
basis of issuance of an Advance Release Order (ARO) by DGFT, Mumbai. On November 28, 2019, the Additional Dircctar of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad has issued show cause
notice (which is primary stage of adjudication) stating that the refunds were erroneously paid by this office and directed 10 pay back the amount of Rs, 549.33 lakhs (March 31,
2022 Rs 549.33 lakhs) along with interest @ 15%. The Additional Director of Foreign Trade, Ahmedabad has also provided an opportunity to the Company to appear before the
Authority which is mandatory requirement before adjudicating. In terms of the provisions of the Act, the Parent Company has filed the writ petition before Hon'ble Gujarat High
Court against the Show Cause Notice challenging the legality of the notice and the Hon'ble court has granted interim reliel and also stayed the show cause notice proceedings. During
the year ended Mareh 31, 2021, DGFT has filed their affidavit in reply before the Hon'ble court and the parent company has subsequently filed atfidavit in-rejoinder. The matter is
pending for arguments. The management basis its assessment based on past lezal precedents believes there are low chances of this linbility being materialised hence disclosed as
contingent liability,

i) Besides the above. the Group has reecived show cause notices from various departments which have not been treated as contingent liabilitics, since the Group has adequately
represented to the concerned departments and does not expect any liability on this account.

As at March 31, 2023, the Group Company had available Rs. 5,181.44 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs, 12,671.11 lakhs ) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities.

OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Emplovee Benefits" are given below :

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards Provident Fund and ESI which are defined

contribution plans. The Groun has no oblizations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to statement of profit and loss as they acerue.
The Group has recognised the following amount as an expense and included in the Note 21 under “Contribution to provident and other funds”

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Emplover's Contribution towards Provident fund (PF) 21841 177,18
Emplover's Contribution towards Emplovee state insurance (ESI) 8.58 9,14
226.99 186.32

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
‘The group has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, Every employee who has completed at least five years of continous service gets a gratuity on

departure al 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service, The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India for Parent company in form of a qualifying
insurance policy and is managed by Trust.

The present value of abligation s determined based on actuarial valuation using the project unit eredit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation,

The following lables summaries the componenis of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a) Net defined benefit expense (Recognised in the Statement of profit and loss [or the year )

Current Service Cost 81.39 78.34
Net Interest Cost 20.58 13.95
Net defined benefit expense debited to statement of profit and loss 101.98 92,29

b)) Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income A
Actuarial chanees arising from changes in demographic assumptions (2.22) (1.52)

Actuarial changees arising from changes n financial assumptions 68.13 (19.59)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in experience adiustiments (14.15) 6,98
Return on plan assets. excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 0.09 7.79
Recognised in other comprehensive income 51.86 (6.34)
¢) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the vear 540.89 49419
Interest cost 37.37 31,68
Current service cost 81.39 79.11
Benehit paid (90.94) (49.97)
Actuarial changes arising from chanees in demographic assumptions (2.22) (1.5
Actuarial changes arising (rom changes in financial assumptions 68,13 (19.59)
Actuarial changes arising from chanees in experience adijustments (14.15) 698
620.48 540.89

Defined Benefit obligation as at vear end
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Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
d) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets ni beginning of the year 24284 277.28
Investment Income 16,79 17.73
Employer contribution 93.00 5.50
Benefits Paid (90 94) (19.88)
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (0.09) (7.79)
Fair value of plan assets at year end 263.60 242,84
e) Net defined beneflit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Fair value of plan assets 263.60 24284
Present value of defined benefit obligation (620.48) (540 89)
Amouni recognised in Balance Sheet= Asset / (Linbility) (ﬁg) (298.05)
Bifurcation of Net Linbility
Current liability (165) 113)
Non-Current lial (355 23) 296.92)
(356.88) (298.0%)

2

h

i

k

mj

0

Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Funds managed by insurer (Life Insurance Corporation)

Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation
Mortality Table

Normal retirement age
Discount rate (per annum)
Future Salary increase (per annum)

Attrition rate

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Inerease / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year

Discount Raie
Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Salary Inerease
Increase by 1%
Decrease by 1%

Autrition Rate
I s¢ by 50%
Decrease by 50%,

Mortality Rate
Increase by 10%
Degrease by 10%

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years

Within the next 12 months (next snnual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Between 6and 10 years

Beyond 10 years

100.00%

100% of IALM 2012-14
65 vears for Directors
38 to 60 years for other
employees
7 A% T 45%
1.00%- 9.50%
S 00%-10 00%

(49.03)
50.76

42.32

.32

(40,00

(1720
2600

{0.02)
001

A6 45
226.09
208.41
86204

The average duration of the defined henefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 9 - 15 years (March 31, 2022 7 14 years))

100.00%

100% of IALM 2012-14

65 years lor Directors

58 yenrs for other

employees
640 6. 75%
7.00%- 8 00%
5.00°4-10,00%

(35.70)
40.40

(7 54)
.30

002

(003)

a7
19081
248 30
514 98

The plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India in case of parent company and one of subsidiary company namely "Crimsun Organics Private Limited” and with HDFC Life in case of one

of subsidiary namely Leeds Life Science Private Limited

The Group is expects to contribute Rs 41920 lakhs {March 31, 2022 Rs 334 05 lukhs) 10 the plan during the nest financial year

The estimates of rate of escalanon in salary considered in actuaril valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promaotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment

market The above information is ns certified by the Actuary

Discount tate 15 based on the prevailing market vields of Indian Government securities as at the hitance sheet dare for the estimated term of the obligations

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolutes the impact on defined benetit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the

reporting period
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2 Segment Reporting

As per Ind AS-108, "Operating Segment"” ( specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 {as
amended from time 1o time) and other relevant provision of the Act ) the Company’s chief operating decision maker (*CODM’) has identified that the Company's business activity falls
within a single operating segment which is the production of agrochemical products and other related products and hence operates in a single business segment based on the nature of the
products, the risk and returns, organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the group as per the requirement of Ind AS-
108 “Operating Segments”

Geographical Information
The “Geographical Segments” comprises of domestic segment which includes sales 1o customers located in India and the overseas segment includes sales to customers located outside

The following is the distribution of Company's revenue by geographical market, regardless of where the goods were produced.

Geographical Revenue

Particulars For the vear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue- within Indin 62.714.85 42.312.39
Revenue- outside India 39.266.53 15.779.56
101.981.38 78.091.95
Other operating revenues
Revenue- within India 538.06 347,99
Revenue- outside India 330.23 -
868.89 347.99
Geographical Segment current assets
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within India 51.918.37 38.713.08
Outside India 19.217.86 17.592.45
71,136.23 56,305.54
Geographical Non-current assels
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2022
Within India 12.183.45 9.866.93
Outside India 1.555.53 2.561.20
11.738.98 428.19
Geographical capital expenditure - Property plant and equipment and Capital wotk in progress
As al As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within India 1.834.59 1.265.14
Outside India 418 58.52
1.838.76 1,323.60
Geographical expenditure - Intangible assets and Intangible assces under development
As at Axs al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Within India 1.085.20 932,15
Outside India 174.73 122.33
1,259.93 1,054.48

Notes:

(i) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment. Capital work i progress. intangible assets and intangible assets under development net of capitalisation from
previous year,

(i) There are no customers having revenue exceeding 10% of wotal revenue of the Group.

(iii) Non-current assets excludes deterred fax assets.

(This Space is mtentionally left hlank)
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3 Related party transactions

The related partics as per the terms of Ind AS-24."Related Party Disclosures”, (under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 (us amended [rom time Lo lime), as disclosed below -

(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship :
i) Key Management Personnel

Name Relationship

Mr. Keshay Anand Managing Director

Mr. Sharat Anand Director

Mr. Vikram Anand Director

Mr, Uday Raj Anand Director

Mr. Shiv Raj Anand Director

Mr. Raj Deep Bhatia Dircctor

Ms. Aditi Anand Director (cffective till September 23, 2021)

Mr. Savimit Grover Director (effective till September 23, 2021)

Mr. Gautam Mahajan Independent Director

Mr Anoop Scth Chairman & Independent Director

Ms. Karuna Vishunavat Independent Dircetor

Mr Anil Sachdeva Company Secretary

Mr Jaya Krishna Chiel Financial Officer ( effective from October 25, 2021 till March 11, 2022)

Mrs. Apoorva Choubey Chief Financial Officer (effective from July 12, 2022)
i) Name Relationship

Mr. Gautam Raj Anand Relatives of Key Management Personnel/Director

Ms. Aditi Anand Relatives of Key Management Personnel/Director

(B) Enterprises in which their Key Managerial Personnel and relatives have significance influence:

i) Entity Name Relationship
Parijat Crop Proiection (India) Private Limited
Anand Foundation
Parijat Holdings Private Limited
Parijat Entertainment Private Limited Enterprises in which their Key Managenal Personnel and their relatives have significance

Parijat Innovation Private Limited influence
Parijat Fitess Private Limited
Parijat Consulting Private Limited
Parijat Arts & Media Private Lid.
Enterprises in which Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have significance

SGAP & Co., Charlered Accountants influence (effective 1ill Seprember 23, 2021)

i) Entity Name Relationship
Are An Ceil Enterprises having significant influence
SMIAS Sarl Enterprises having significant influence

(This Space ix intentionally fefl blank)
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Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupees unless otherwise stated)

4 Fair value measurements

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments::

Carrying Value Fair Value

Particulars As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are

disclosed
Trade receivables 27.581.69 18.977.47 27.581.69 18,977.47
Cash and cash cauivalents 1.831.33 4.205.95 1.831.33 4.205.95
Bank balances other than above 1.023.51 1.647.40 1.023.51 ' 1.647.40
Loans (current and non-current) 198.31 170.35 198.31 170.35
Other financial assets (non-current and current) 547.83 209.75 547.83 200,75
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract 5.48 90.72 548 90.72
31,188.15 25.301.64 31,188.15 25.301.64
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are
disclosed
Borrowing (current and non-current) 23.165.11 33.579.71 23.165.11 33.579.71
Trade payables 32.395.90 23.461.60 32.395.90 23.461.60
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 129.52 257.90 129.52 257.90
Other financial liabilitics (current) 2,640.61 2.315.81 2.640.61 2.315.81
Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract 186.52 115 186.52 1.15
58.517.66 59,616.17 ___58.517.66 59.616.17

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents. bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets,
contract liabilitics. trade payables, current borrowings and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of financial liabilities is measured at amortised cost except for financial liability measured at EVTPL, estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates
currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. These unobservable inputs are estimated by management and management regularly
assesses a range of reasonably pessible allernatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value, The fair value of the
financial liabilities measured at FVTPL ure estimated as per independent value report.

Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Group based on paramelers such as interest rates, risk factors. individual creditworthiness of the counterparty and the
risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

The fair values of the company's interest - bearing borrowings are determined by using effective interest rate (EIR) method using discount rate that reflects the issuer's
borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non- performance risk as at March 31, 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group has entered into derivative financial instruments with various banks and financial institutions. Interest rate swaps and forcign exchange forward contracts arc
valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. As at year end, the mark-to-market value of other derivative asset positions is net ol a
credit valuation adjustment atributable to devivative counterparty default risk, The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial instruments
Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 13 The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted (unadjusted) market prices at the end ol the reporting period for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that arce not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. I all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
taval 3

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities,
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level,




Parijat Industries (India) Private Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in rupces unless otherwise stated)

There are no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 during the

vedar,

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2023

Fair Value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Loans (current and non-current) 198.31 - 198,31
Other financial assets (non-current) 54783 - 54783
Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss for which fair value are
disclosed
Derivative instrument - foreien currency forward contract 548 - 5.48 -
Liabilitics carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowing {current and non-current) 2316511 - - 23.165.11
Lease labilities (current and non-current) 129.52 - - 129,52
Other financial liabilities (current) 2.640.61 - - 2.640.61
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract 186,52 - - 186,52
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on
March 31, 2022

Fair Value

Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Loans (current and non-current) 170.35 - - 170.35
Other financial assets (non-current and current) 209,75 - - 209,75
Assets carried at fair value through profit and loss for which fair value are
disclosed
Derivative instrument - foreign currency forward contract 90.72 - 90.72 -
Linbilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowing (current and non-current) 3357971 - - 33.579.71
Lease liabilities (current and non-cutrent) 257.90 - - 257.90
Other financial liabilities (current) 231581 - - 2315.81
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Dervative instrument - foreign currency forward contract I.15 - - 1.15

(This Space is intentionalh: left blank)
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Foreign exchange forward contracts

The company has entered into other foreign exchange lorward contracts with the intention of reducing the foreign exchange risk ol loreign currency receivibles and are entered into lor periods
consistent with foreign currency exposure of the underlying transactions, These contracts are not designated in hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
’ Currency Qutstandin
Natore ot eontricts Hedged Foreign . Amount in INR Ollfs'ﬂ‘ndmg Amount in INR
Curency Foreign Currency
Forward exchange contracts ( Trade Receivables) uUsD 62,13 5.136.30 81.40 4,892.42
Forward exchange contracts (Trade Receivables) EURO 66.40 5,932.82 58.00 5.130.28
Forward exchange contracts (Trade Receivables) CAD - - 30.00 1,802.69
Forward exchange contracts (Trade Receivables) GBP - - 4,00 411.20
Forward exchange contracts (Trade Payables) USD 137.97 11,339.00 79.54 6,854 .42

Fair value gain on linancial instruments measured at fair value amounting t 2 270.62 lakhs (March 31. 2022: T 82,56 lakhs) has been recognised as income in statement of profit and loss account.

Financial risk management obicctives and policies

The Group's principal financial labilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade, other payables and amount invested by the investor. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the
Group's operations, The Group's principal financial assets nclude loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Groups's finan:

ial risk managerment is an integral part of how to plan and exeeute its business strategies. The Group is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior
management oversees the management of these risks, The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the group are
accouniable to the Board of Dircctors and Audit Commitice. This process provides assurance 10 group’s senior management that the group’s financial risk-taking activities are governed by
appropriate policics and procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with group policies and group risk objective, In the event of crisis caused due to
external factors such as caused by recent pandemic and "Covid-19" and "Russia - Ukraine War", the management assesses the recoverability of its assets, maturity of its liabilities to factor it in cash
flow forecast 1o ensure there is enough liquidity in these situations through internal and external source of funds.

The Board of Dircetors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks which are summarized as below:

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bee
risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Finane

e of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rate
struments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, and foreign
currency receivables and payables, The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate 10 the position as at the date of financial statements. The unalysis exclude the impact of movements n
market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The analysis for the contingent lability is provided in
note 25, The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effeet ol the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at
the date of financial statements,

(i)  Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of an exposure or o finaneial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in torgign exchange rates, Foreign currency
visk arises from future commercial transuctions and recognised in assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that is not Group's functional currency. (i.e. INR). The Group manages
its foreign currency risk through foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its omstanding exposure. The spol component of forward contracts 15 deternined with reference to relevant spot
market exchange rates. The differential between the contracted forward rate and the spot market exchange rate is defined as the forwiard pomts. The Group’s exposure to the risk of chunges
in loreign exchange rales relates primarily (o the group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in loreign curreney) The Group manages it foreign currency risk partly
by taking forward exchange contraet lor transactions of sales and purchases and partly balanced by purchasing of goods/services [rom the respective countries. The Group evaluales exchange
fate exposure arising [rom foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EURO. CAD. RUB and other exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on
the group profit before tax and equity is dug 1o changes in the Lair value of monetary assets and liabilities, The details of forward currency forward contracts outsturcling and foreign currency
exposure as al year end along with the sensitivity a nalysis of 1% are as under:

Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure is as follows:

Un hedged Exposure as at March 31, 2023 Un hedged Exposure as at March 31, 2022
Currency Foreign Exchange rates  Amount (in INR) Foreign Exchange rates  Amount (in INR)
Currency Currency

Trade Receivable

LISD 34.93 164.31 1.870,62 6,75 133,02 491.50
AED - - - 0.44 20.55 9.04
RUB 5.608.49 1.06 6,061.08 2.761.90 (.88 243456
EURO 1.65 89.61 148.13 - - -
Other Reeeivable

usD 0.74 8215 6l.1s - - .
CFA 1.850.153 014 252,01 - - =
GRP 0.01 101.47 0.89 - - -
TZS 4065.32 0.04 16.30 - -

Loans

CEA 3.100.15 .14 694,69 3.909.28 013 S0 13
usp 204 8216 176.17 4.77 75.51 360,12
TZS 321532 0.04 112.00 2.592.60) 0.03 97,08
Trade Payable

EURO 172 89,37 332.19 0.37 84.25 3089
CAD 0.46 60.67 28,04 . 3 s
UsD 21.00 246.12 1,722.43 979.93 210.30 829.29
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(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, The mpuet on the Group profit before tax
is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and Labilities as given below :

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Gain/ (Loss) Impact on profit | Gain/ (Loss) Impact on profit before
Change +1%  Change - 1% Change +H1% Change - 1%

Trade Receivable

UsD 18.71 (18.71) 4.91 (4.91)
AED - - 0.0 (0.09)
RUB 60.61 (60.61) 24.35 (24.35)
EURO 1.48 (1.48) - -
Other Receivable

Usb 0.61 (0.61) - -
CTFA 2.52 (2.52) - -
GBP 0.01 (0.01) u o
TZS 0.16 (0.16) - &
Loans

CFA 6.95 (6.95) 5.01 (5.0
usp 1.76 (1.76) 360 {3.60)
TZS 113 (1.13) 0.97 {0.97
Trade Payable

EURO (3.32) i (030 0.31
CAD (0.28) 0.28 - -
UsD (17.22) 17.22 (8.29) 8.29

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes
in marker interest rates relates primarily to the Group's borrowings at (loating interest rates, The Group's borrowings outstanding also comprise of fixed rate loan (term loan taken by the
Group) and accordingly is exposed to risk of fuctuation in market mterest rate,

The company has following fixed rate and variable borrowings :-

Particulars As at As at
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Floating rate 20.496.31 30,807.37

borrowines

Fixed rate 2.0668.80

borrowines

23.165.11 33.579.71

Interest rate Sensitivity of Borrowings
With all other variables held constant, the following 1able demonsirates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on floating rate portion of loans and borrowings:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increase/ decrease  Impact on profit  Increase/ decrease Impact on profit
in basis points before tax in basis points before tax
((loss)gain) ((loss)/gain)
Borrowings (Rs.) +50 (102.48) +50 (154.04)
=50 102.4% =50 154.04

Commaodity Price Risk

The Group is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. [ts operating activities require the ongoing manufacturing and trading of agrochemical products and therefore require a
continuous supply of technical chemicals, solvents, emulsifiers, packing material cte., being the major input used in the manufacturing and trading. Due to interational environmental
regulations, the prices of the technical chemicals used as input witnessed volatility in the markets and also might lead to a situation of increase in lead time to procure the goods. The Group
has entered into various purchase contracts for these material for which there is an active market. The Group's management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding
commaodity price risk and its mitigation through its procurement and production strategy. The Group partly mitigated the nsk of price volatility by entering inta the contract for the purchase of
these material based on average price,

(b) Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed Lo credit risk principally

from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and also from its finuncing activities

M

including deposits with bunks, foreign exchange trunsuctions and other financial instruments.

Trade Receivables

Customer eredit risk is managed by cach customer segment department subject 1o the Group's established policy. procedures and control relating to customer credit rish. management
(including credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which Group grants eredit term in normal course of business). Credit
quality of a customer is assessed by the Group on various parameters by its eredit control department, Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major
customers are generally covered by letters of eredit or other forms of credit insurance obtained from reputable banks and other financial institutions 1o secure the risk of default by the
customers, Moreover, given the diverse nature of the Group's businesses trade receivables are spread over a number of customers with no significant concentration of credit risk.

An mpairment analysis is performed at cach reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based on provision matix. The provision rates are based on days past
dug for grouping of various customers based on their segment type, The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of cach class of financial assets, The Group

ad intogral part of trade rece

ity The letters of eredit and other farme of erodit Ingurance are con ibles and considered in the ealculation of imp: ent

The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables ag low, as its customers are lacated in several junsdictions and indusiries and operate in largely independent
markets.

diver ot hald callateral as see

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Group holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy bar

mstitution within the approved exposures limit of each bunk. None ot the Group's equivalents, meluding deposits with
banks, are past due or impaired. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions s manuged by the Group's treasury depi nt in accordance with the Group's policy,
Investments of surplus funds iF any are made in bank deposits. The limits are set to mimimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential
[ailure 1o make payments. The Group is also exposed to eredit risk in relation 1o loans and financial guarantees given to/ on behall ol subsidiaries.

The Group's maximum exposure 1o eredit risk [or the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023 1s the carrying amounts, The Group's maximum exposure relating to financial assels
is noted in liquidity table below, Trade Receivables and other linancial assets are written ofl when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in the
repayment plan with the Group, R
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Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Cash and cash cauivalents 1.831.33 4.205.95
Other bank balances 1.023.51 1.647.40
Loans (current and non- current) 108.31 170,35
Others non-current financial assets 471.84 134.65
Others current financial assets 81.47 165.82
3.606.46 6,324.17

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Trade Receivables 27.581.69 18.977.47
27.581.6% 18.977.47

Balances with banks is subject to low eredit risks due 1o good credit ratings assigned 1o these banks.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due after considering the allowance for expected credit loss is us below:
Particulurs Asat As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Neither past duc nor impaired 20,155.04 13,182.85
0 10 180 days duc past due date 7.330.28 5.742.91
More than 180 days past due date 96.37 51,71
Total Trade Reecivables 27.581.69 18.977.47
The following table summarizes the change in impairment allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2022

As at the beginnine ol vear 2.810.68 2,541.58
Impairment allowance lor expected eredit loss for during the vear (refer note 24) 793.03 27397
Utilisation during the vear (34.61) (+.87)
As at the end of vear 3.569.12 2.810.68

(¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to setile or meet ils obligations on time or at reasonable price. The group’s abjective is to at all times maintain optimum levels ol
liquidity to meel its cash and liquidity requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position und deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate source of financing
through the use of working capital and cash credit facility, Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group's liquidity position
through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash Hows.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilitics based on contractual maturitics:

As at March 31, 2023 ' Less than | year 1-5 years Total
Borrowines 20.837.65 232746 23.165,11
Trade pavables 32,395.90 - 32.305.90
Lease lability (Undiscounted) 106.18 3483 141.01
Other financial liabilities 2.827.13 - 2,427.13
56,166.86 2,362.29 58.529.15
As at March 31, 2022 Less than | vear 1-5 years Total
Barrowines 14.105,48 19.474.23 33.579.71
Trade pavables 23.401.60 - 23.461,60
Lease liability (Undiscounted) 150.41 186.01 336,42
Other financial liabilitics 2,316.96 - 2.316.96
40,034.45 19.660.24 59.694.69

6 Share based payments

(A) Employee Stack Option Scheme (ESOP Scheme)

The Parent company has issued stock aptions 1o its employees in accordance with the Company's Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017, The scherme has been adopted by the Board of Directors on
September 27, 2017 and the same was approved by the members of the parent entity on September 29, 2017, The scheme is udministered by the Parijat Employees Welfare Trust established by the
Group for extending benefits of the scheme to the existing and future employees of the Company. The maximum number of options that may be issued pursuant o this seheme shall not exceed 2%
of the paid up share capital of the parent company on fully diluted basis. which shall be convertible into equal number of Equity Shares of the parent company at the time of the Exercise of such
options by the Grantee. All the permanent employees of the parent company except the promoter, or any director holding more than 10% of the outstanding equity shares of the Parent compuny, are
cligible to participate in the schemes, The Committee grants stock options to the employees at its discretion depending upon eriteria such as performance of the employee, loyalty with the group,

The stack option shall vest from the date of grant and shall not exceed heyond four years from the date of grant provided the requisite vesting conditions are fulfilled by the option holders. The exaet
vesting period applicable to cach grant shall be stated in cach grant letter, The exereise period shall commence from the date of vesting period and ean extend up to three years lrom the date ol grant
of aptions or such other period as may be decided by the Board and stated in the grant letier along with the exereise price. The exereise price. in cash, is paid by the employee at the time of exercise
of the stock option. The option automatically lapses if not exercised at the end of excrcise period, The lapsed option is available for being re-granted/ re-issued ata future date. 1 he maximum
number of options that may be pranted o any specific employee is up w | % of the issued capital of the company as on the date of entitlement of options. The fair value of the share options granted
is estimated using the Black Scholes Merton (BSM) Model. The company shall issuc one equity share having face value of Rs 10/ cach on payment of exercise price of the Option,

The expense recognised for emplayee services received during the year is shown in the lollowing table

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employee stock option plan (2.70) 19.29
(3.70) 39.29
Date of Gramt No, of options Exercise Price \,vf"gl,“mj Average Exercise Period Vesting Period
granted Fair Value of share
November 27, 2017 147,281 10,00 106,04 3 years 3 years
January 23, 2018 12,500 10.00 106,04 3 yeurs 3 years
November 21, 2018 128,586 10.00 102,16 3 years 3 years
November 21, 2019 143,734 10.00 63,46 3 yemrs 3 years

December 1, 2021 46,997 73.29 3 yeurs 3 vears
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8

(B)  Summary of stock options

The following table illustrales the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share oplions during the res

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Far the year ended March 31,

2022
Particulars Na. of Options Weighted No. of Options Weighted
Average Exercise Average Exercise
Price Price
Quistanding as at April 01, 2022 301.619 10 317.329 10
Granted during the vear - - 46.997 -
Forfeited / lapsed during the year 31107 10 62.707 10
Settled during the year 4,700 065 -
Outstanding as at March 31, 2023 265.812 10 301,619 10
Exercisable as at March 31, 2023 230.162 - 156,094 -
(C)  Range of exercise price and weighted average remaining contractual life of stock options outstanding:
For the vear ended March 31, 2023 For the vear ended March 31, 2022
We ber of stock
Number of stock eightod Ny Lr.“ stoe Weighted average
; Range of average aptions Range of
options outstanding 7 i # 5 2 remaining
exercise price remaining outstanding at | exercise price
at the year end contractual life
= contractual life the year end
265.812 10,00 0.56 301,619 10,00 0.62
()

The Model inputs for options granted: The fair value at the grant date 15 determined using Black Scholes valuation model which tukes into account the exercise price, the terms of the oplions,
and expected price volatility of the underlying shares, the expected dividend yield and the risk free imterest rate for the term of the options which are as follows:

Particulars December 01, 2021
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.15%
Dividend yield (%) 0.00%
Expected volatility (%o) 31.93%
Expected life (in years) 5.50
Exercise price (Rs. per share) 10.00
Weighted average fair value of option (Rs. per share) 73.29

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the histarical volatility over a period similar 1o the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the ac

aulcame,

Capital Management

For the purposes of the Group's capital management, capital includes cquity capital, compulsory convertible preterence shares, securities premium and all other equity reserves attributable 10 the
equity holders of the Parent Company. The primary objective of the group's capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as going concern and to ensure that it maintains an efficient
capital structure and maximize sharcholder value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requircments of the financial
covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital siructure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders or tssue new shares, The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements, No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 except for budgeting for cash Now
prajections considering the impact of ongoing pandemic Covid-19. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio to the mininwm.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalems) divided by total capital plus net debt which is summarised as below:

Particulars
Borrowines {refer note 12(A)4*

Cash and cash equivalents {refer note YB)

Net Debt

Equity {refer note 11(A) & (B}
Tatal Capital

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio (Net Debt/ Capital and Net Debt)

* Borrowines does not includes lease labilities,

Earnings per share (EPS)

a)  Basic Earnings per share

Profit afier tax attributable for cauity holders of the Company
Weishted average number of cquity shares in caleulating basis EPS

Earnings per share-Basic (one eauity shave of Re. 10 cach) (A/B)

by Diluted Earnines per share

Profit after tax used for caleulation of diluted eaming per share
Weiehted number of cuuity shares outstanding during the vear

Effeet of dilution:

Stock ontions granted under emplovee stock option scheme (ESOP scheme)
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating diluted EPS

Diluted carnings per sharefone cauity share of Re. 10 each) (C/D)

Note:

The Group has classitied the redeemable equity shares issued (o Investor as financial lhabilty measured al FY
{hese are not included in outstanding equity shares for computation of EPS in previous year,

A)
B)

C)

1))

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

23,165.11 13,579.71
(1.831.33) (4.205,95)
21.333.78 20.373.76

20.495 .88 4.846.74
20,495.88 4.846.74
41.829.66 34.220.50
51.00%: BS.84%

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

4.179.29 (4.227.69)
20,555,495 20,454,840
20.33 (20.67)
4.179.29 4.227.09)
20,555,495 20,454,840
265812 302,646
20,821,307 20,757.486
20.07 (20.37)

¢ company has an obligation to deliver cash at fair value and hence
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9 Leases
(i) The Group’s lease asset primarily consist of leaschold land & lease for offices having non-cancellable lease term of 3 years,
(i) Following is carrying value of right of use assets recognised on date of transition and the movements thereof during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Building Leasehold land Total
Balance as at April 01, 2021 131.39 214.68 346.07
Additions during the year 311.90 - 311.90
Deletion during the year 64.83 - 64.83
Balance as at March 31, 2022 378.46 214.68 593.14
Additions during the ycar B - R
Deletion during the year 3 s =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 378.46 214.68 593.14
Particulars Leasehold Building Leasehold land Total
Balance as at April 01, 2021 35.73 Z32 37.95
Additions during the year 161.68 222 163.90
Deletion during the year ‘ 64.83 64.83
Balance as at March 31, 2022 132,58 4.44 137.02
Additions during the year 129.70 222 131.92
Deletion during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 262.28 6.66 268.94
Net Block of Right of Use Asset

Balance as at March 31, 2022 245.88 210.24 456.12
Balance as at March 31, 2023 116.18 208.02 324.20

(iif) The following is the carrying value of lease liability on the date of transition and movement thereof during the year :

Particulars Total
Balance as at April 01, 2021 94,28
Additions during the year 311.90
Finance cost accrued during the year (refer note 23) 32.85
Payment of lease liabilities 181.13
Balance as at March 31, 2022 22505

Additions during the year =

Finance cost accrued during the year (refer note 23) 22.03
Payment of lease habilities 15041
Balance as at March 31, 2023 74.64

As at As al
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current Lease liability {refer note 12(B3)} 08,43 128.38

Non-Current Lease Liability {refer note 12(B)} 31,09 129.52

129.52 257.90

(iv) Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to periods:

Lease obligations As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Not later than one year 106,18 150.41

Later than one vear and not later than live years 34.83 186.01

Later than five years
(v) The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 11%
(vi) Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was Rs $71.28 lacs for the year ended March 31,2023 {March 31.2022 Rs 424.09 lacs) (refer note 24).
(vii} The Group docs not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease labilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease
liabilities as and when they fall due.
(viii) The Group has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases ol a similar assets in similar cconomic environment with similar end date.

As at As at
Acquisition of right of use assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Disposal of right of use assets - 311.90
- 3190

(This Space is intentionally left blank)
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10 Additional Information to the consolidated financial statements,

(A) The consolidated financial statements of the

aroup includes following subsidiarics. Details of subsidiary companies arc as follows:

as required under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 of entities consolidated as subsidiaries.

Name of Company Country of Ownership interest held by Non Controlling Interest Reporting date used for
Incorporation As al As al As at As at consolidation
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 March 31, March 31,
2023 2022
Crimsun Organies Private Limited India T8% 77% 22% 23% March 31, 2023
Leeds Life Sciences Private Limited India 100% 100% - - March 31, 2023
Belin International Limited Hongkong 100% 100% - - March 31, 2023
Leeds Lifescience Limited United Kingdom 100% 100% - - March 31, 2023
Belin Limited Russia 100%, 100% - - March 31, 2023
Parijat Tanzania Limited Tanzania 100% 100% - - March 31, 2023
Parijat Mali SA Mali 70% 70% 30% 30% March 31, 2023
Parijat Togo SARL Togo 51% 51% 49% 49% March 31, 2023

(B) Following is the

share of net asscts and the profit or loss of the entities which have

(India) Private Limited for the financial year ended Mareh 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

been consolidated for prepatation of the consolidated [tnancial statements of Parijat industrics

Nel assets (total assets minus total Share in other comprehensive | Share in total comprehensive
liabilities) Shariia Profit/{lues) income income
p 0
S.No. Name of Entity
iy of Net Amount A a % of Amount Ana % of Amount L% Jaiok Amount
Assets Profit/ (Loss) Profit/ (Loss) Profit/ (Loss) un
i Palr|_|u1 lllflusirlcs India L03% 24,160.26 109% 4.570.84 R5% (45.01) 110% 4,525.83
Private Limited
Indian subsidiary
3 (;:::!T::t:;] Organics Private 14% 3,260.90 s 105.25 % 4.94 30 110,19
_imite
3 :::“": ‘&""‘ Sciences Private i 1.380.13 0 191.45 i 1,20 ) 192.65
¢
Forcign subsidiary
companies
4 Belin International Limited 1% 202.84 5% 195.70 [ - 5% 195,70
5 Leeds Lifescience Limited 2% 392.71 0% (19.68) 0% “ 0% (19.68)
0 Belin Limited 4% 495,91 6% 247,64 0% - 6% 247.64
7 Parijal Tanzania Limited 0% (15.97) -1% (26.11) 0% 1% (26.11
8 Parijal Mali SA =% (663.45) 2% 9235 0% - 2% 92.35
9 Pariiat Togo SARL 2% 392.71 0% 20,80 0% 1% 20,80
Non-controlling interest in 2% {479.80) 1% 60.93 v, 1,08 20, 62.01
all subsidiarics - - -
Less: Total Eliminations -26% (6.1606.40) 30% (1.259.88) 29% (15.41) -3 1% (1.275.30)
Total 100% 23.459.84 100% 4,179.29 100% (53.20) 100% 4.126.09
Year ended March 31, 2022
Net assets (total assets minus total Share in Profit/(Loss) Share in other comprehensive | Share in total comprehensive
o liabilities) income income
5o Nme oEEatity As a % of Net R As a % of Anibiiat Asa % of Awiount Asa % of A G
Assets Amou Profit/ (Loss) - Profit/ (Loss) ’ Profit/ (Loss) '
| Parijat Industrics India 106% 5.137.60 102% (4.313.54) &% 4.006 1639 (4.300.48)
Private Limited
Indian subsidiary
5 Tr;n\'su]n Organies Private 61% 2.974.50 _15% 63511 3% 1.47 15% 636,58
Amited
3 ll:ccq: ld,alc Sciences Privawe 24% 1.179.96 1% (484.50) 7% (0.80) 1% (485 30)
e
Forcign subsidiary
companies
4 Belin International Limited 0% 1.61 1% 27.36 0% 1% 27:36
5 Leeds Lifescience Limited 8% 403.02 -1% 62.51 0% - =1% 62,51
O Relin Limied 15% 732,42 4% (187.22) 0% - 4% (187.22)
7 Parijat Tanzania Limited 0% 12,34 0% 19.36 O - 0% 1936
L] Pavijat Mali SA -15% (705.63) 9% 303.85 0% - 9% 30385
9 Parijat Togo SARL 2% (R6.77Y 0% 18.55 0% - 0% 18.55
Non-controlling interest in 7% (335.34) % (272.28) Jos, 0.33 6% (271.95)
all subsidiaries
Total Bliminations -92% 14.466.97) % (126.88) 0% (0.42) 3% (127.30)
Total 100% 4.846.74 100% {4.227.69) L0 % 4.65 100% (4.223.04)




Parijat Industries (India) Privite Limited
Nates to C lidated [i ial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in Rs. in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

10 Additional Information (o the consolidated fnancial statements, us required under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 of entities consolidated as subsidinries,
() Material partly-owned subsidiines
Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:
Parijat Mali SA

Crimyun Organics Private Limited

Proportion of cquity interest held by non-contralling interests: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Accumulated batances of materal non-controlling interest (199.03) 211691
Profitdloss) allocated 1o material ron-contralling interest 27T (11816)

The summarized financial information of Crimsun Organics Private Limited is provided below. This ntormation ix based on antounts before imter-company elminations

March 31, 2023

71348
.11

March 31, 2022

[
(144.95)

Si ised stat t af profit nnd loss: Parijut Mali SA Crimsun Organies Private Limited
For the year ended  For the venr ended  For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2023 March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations TO05 46 6,520.96 546873
Other income 612 E 24212 4954
Total Income 7.611.58 1.553.40 6,769.08 5,518.27
Cost of raw material and components consumed 438401 ERIRT]
Purchase ol traded goods 6,140.50 143007
(Inerease) i inventories of inished gouds, work in progress and traded goods A99.83 483 16.17 A8
Employee benefits expense ™7 inAu 710,50 500,84
Depreciation and amarization expenses 10418 87.47 4076 3598
Finunce Costs 203:19 122.30 103.65 L6
Other expenses ) 411,14 220,07 1.137.60 1.034.24
Tuoral Expenses 744461 1,931.72 6,692.75 6.127.47
Profit/(Luss) before tax 16697 (378.12) 76.33 (R09.20}
T expuense (74.62) (15.53) 23,92 171.33
Profit/{loss) for the year 42.35 (393.85) 105.25 (637.87)
Other comprehensive imgome - . 494 147
‘Total comprebensive income for the year, net of tax 92,35 (393.85) 11019 (636.40)
Attributable o non-controlling mterests il | [RREA D] 24,11 [ERERAN]
Summarised Balance sheet:
Inventories, cush and cash equivs ¢, tinunciol aseets feurrent) s other current ussets 1,967 40 179206 L113ox 1475.32
Property. plant and equipmient, einl agsets (curment) and other non current assels 144.50 152,07 425913 142203
Deferred Tax nssels . . 47518 HE.00
Trade puyable (current) RREEN D 1.693.30 173843 256154
Interest-hearing loans and borrowing (current and non-cureent) 734.08 658.00 770,11 (RS
Provisions. financial | and other current Tiabiliues 87.08 208.70 78.55 144,65
Total equity 1663.45) (705.63) 3,200.30 2.630.10
Attributable to:
Fquity holders of parent (40441} (403.94) 254682 103800
Non-controlling interest (190.03) (21164 71348 Gt
11 Other Statatory Information
(i The Giroup dows not have any Benumi Property where any procecdings have been mitisted o are pending against e group for holding benwmi property under the Benam Transactions (Prohibition) Act, [958 (45 ol 1U88)

and Rules made thereunder

{n Noe of the group conpany hus been declured willul defaulier by any etk o finanetil institution o govermment or anyeovernment anthority.

Gy The group has no balances with the stuck off under section 248 of Companies Act. 2013 ar section 560 of Companies Act, 1956:

(iv) The Graup has not entered inteany seheme ol arrangement which lis an sccounting impact on curtent o previous linancial year

tvh o The Giroup has not advaneed or losned or invested fundy to any ather pe
Diveetly o wdireetly kend or invest in other persons or entities ident
Provide any guaraniee, secunity or the like (o oron behall ol the ulimate beneliciaries

cd in any tanner whitsoever by or on beballofthe group (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or

s entity, including toreign entities (ntennediories) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

The Group hus not teceived any lund from any person or crtity. including farcign entities (Funding Party) with the undesstanding (whether recorded o writing or otherwise) thit the Group shall:

¢ whatsoevier by or on behalf ofthe Funding Party (Ultimate Benelicianes) or

Directly or inditectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ides
Provide any guaranice, security or the like un behal (ol the ultinate heneliciries.
tvil The each entity in the group has complicd with the number ol layers prescribed undee the Companies

12013

ivii = 3 £ -
L Tax Act, 1961 (such us scarch or survey or any ather relevant provision ot the Income Tax Aet, 1961)

(vit) The Group has not iided or invested in cryplo carrency or vinal eurrency during ihe current oF previous year,

{ix) The CGroup has not revalued its property, plant and equipment Gineluding right- ssels) or intangible ossetsor both during the current or previous year.

(ix) The Group does not have any chiarges or satisfaction which are yet 1o be regisiered w 1t the Registrar of Companies bevond the statutory period,

(ix) The barowings ubtained by the Group from banks and financil institutions have been applicd for the purposes for whichsuch loans were was utken,

The group does not have any sueh mansaction which is not secorded i the hooks of secounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax sssessmonts ande the Inconie
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12 Transfer pricing
The Group has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Sections 92-
97F of the Income- tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Group is in the
process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be in
existence latest by such date as required under the law. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
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